Great Basin College FACULTY SENATE 2020-2021 Friday, May 21, 2021

Bluejeans link: https://bluejeans.com/648235834?src=calendarLink

AGENDA

1.	Roll Call	
2.	Call to Order	
3.	Updates from President Helens	
4.	Update from Vice President of BA, Sonja Sibert	
5.	Updates from Vice President of AA/SA, Jake Hinton-Rivera	
6.	Senate Chair Report:	Verbal, Written
7.	Approval of Minutes: ACTION	
8.	Standing Committee Reports:	
	a. Academic Standards & Assessment	No Report
	b. Bylaws	Written, Verbal Report, Action
	c. Compensation & Benefits	Written, Verbal Report, Action
	f. Curriculum Review	Written Report
	g. Distance Education	No Report
	h. Gen Ed Committee	Written Report
	i. Personnel	No Report
	j. Strategic Planning, ad hoc	No Report
9.	Unfinished Business:	Information Only
	a. Resolution on course delivery format for fall semesterb. Evaluation Considerations	
10.	New Business:	
11.	Information Items:	
	a. IDEAS Task Force update	
12.	Announcements: a. Look for Committee Assignments within the next week (Revision 1)	
13.	Good of the Order:	
14.	Adjournment	Action

Great Basin College FACULTY SENATE 2020-2021 Friday, April 16th, 2021

Bluejeans link: https://bluejeans.com/151046248?src=calendarLink&flow=joinmeeting

MEETING MINUTES

1. Roll Call - Call to Order

Voting Representatives: Nicholas Cooley, Brandy Nielsen, Thomas Bruns, Matt Nichols, Diane Wrightman, Laura Pike, Kurt Overall, Oscar Sida (Proxy), Eleanor O'Donnell, Justine Stout, Eric Walsh, Daniel Murphree, Daniel Bergey, David Sexton, Jennifer Brown, Ryan Hathaway, Jennifer Steiger, Lynette MacFarlan, Time Beasley

Absent Voting Members: Gerardo Wence-Munoz

Other Members Present: Susanne Bentley, John Rice, Dean Straight, George Kleeb, Glen Tenney, Kevin Seipp, Veronica Nelson, Madison Arbillaga, Tami Potter, Jennifer Sprout, Geneil White, Xunming Du, Lynne Owens, Pete Bagley, Rita Pujari, Milinda Wasala, Laurie Walsh, Arysta Brick, Chantell Garcia, Todd Hayden, Brenda Gonzales, Kimberly Noah, Brian Zeiszler, Tom Cunningham

2. Updates from President Helens: President Helen's was unable to attend the meeting.

3. Update from Vice President of BA, Sonja Sibert:

Construction has officially started on the new building in Winnemucca. The estimated completion is summer of 2022. Classes are expected to start during the fall 2022 semester.

Flooring projects will be happening in some of the Elko buildings over the summer. The faculty and staff impacted by this project will need to pack up their personal belongings prior to leaving for the summer so the flooring can be replaced in those offices. Tony Cortes will be reaching out to those individuals affected.

As of the 75th day of the Legislative session with 45 days left, over 300 bills died without even a committee hearing. Sonja is still tracking the Title IV bills. NSHE officers and system attorneys have been working with Legislators on Title IV bills. AB450 / BDR1108 is the bill on aligning workforce training and programs offered at the community colleges includes looking at the formula has received an exempt status and is not subject to any of the deadlines at this time. AB416 is a legislative audit of NSHE that goes back over multiple fiscal years and will impact all funding sources including grants, contracts, and foundations. It also reviews both the current WorkDay PeopleSoft, Legacy Accounting, and HR systems. SB321 was the specific bill that separated the community colleges out into a different system id dead without a hearing. SB373, which is related to collective bargaining, passed the committee on April 9th and is still moving forward, along with the alternative FASFA bill, which includes an alternative application process for some of the NSHE scholarships that come through the legislature. There are over 181 bills that NSHE is currently tracking. Some upcoming deadlines are April 20th, the first house passage deadline, May 3rd resolving budget differences, the economic forum report is due May 4th, NSHE's budget closes May 6th, capital improvement projects closes the first week of May and includes the welding lab expansion project. We are still looking at the 12% budget reductions that have been in place with the Governor's recommended. reserves he requested over the summer.

4. Updates from Vice President of AA/SA, Jake Hinton-Rivera:

- Summer is up 33% in FTE and Fall is down about 15% registration.
- Student award nominations can still be submitted through April 23rd.
- a. Information on Student Award Ceremony, Todd Hayden Nominations are due in one week, as of now there are only 3 nominations. There is a group that will review all the nominations using a Rubric that will assist with the decision. Candidates must meet the qualifications and not be on any type of academic probation. The winners receive a scholarship.
- b. Student Orientation "Course", Tom Cunningham The new course includes an introductory video, the facilities and services available to the student, an academic advisement page, smart tips, videos on how to use MyGBC, and guick checks to help teach the students.

5. Senate Chair Report:

Verbal, Written

Leadership Council met on March 25th, Kevin Seipp attended and presented the item from the Personnel Committee. The same rationale that was presented during the all campus update was given as to why there is a change to the rating system rather than a ranking system for recommending individuals for open positions. Most of the reasons were based on legal opinions about past practices.

Council of chairs monthly meeting with the chancellor and NSHE staff was April 15th the meeting was an update on Legislative issues, Governor's directives, and an agenda review of the April 16th special meeting of the Board of Regents.

6. Approval of Minutes:

ACTION

Thomas Bruns motioned to approve the meeting minutes of March 19, 2021. Laura Pike seconded the motion. Motion passed.

7. Standing Committee Reports:

a. Academic Standards & Assessment

- b. Bylaws......Written Report
- c. Compensation & Benefits......Written Report
- f. Curriculum Review......Written Report
- g. Distance Education.....Written Report
- h. Gen Ed Committee......Written Report
- i. Personnel.......Verbal Report
 The committee met to review an Emeritus packet from Lisa Costa-Campbell and that was unanimously forwarded to VP Rivera and President Helens for approval.
- j. Strategic Planning, ad hoc......No Report

8. Unfinished Business:

Information Only

9. New Business:

- a. Evaluation considerations (see packet) Will be revisited as an action item under unfinished business at the next meeting.
- b. Resolution on course delivery format in the fall will me revisited as an action item under unfinished business at the next meeting.
- c. UNR resolution on **SJR7** (the removal of the regent from the Nevada constitution) UNR is taking a position to oppose the removal of the regent. An email will be sent out after the meeting for departmental votes.

10. Information Items:

- a. PTK Food drive update The PTK Food Drive was a huge success in Elko, Pahrump, West Africa, and New York. Overall 4,000 pounds of food was received with over 245 pounds being donated by the Elko Downtown Bar Association along with \$1025 in cash to be given to our nonprofit organizations.
- b. FS Vice Chair Nominations and upcoming election update Please send all nominations to Brian Zeiszler or Kevin Seipp.
- c. Status of Committee Assignments for 21-22- Kevin Seipp Kevin sent out a google form for committee assignments for next year. Please respond to the Google form and avoid sending an email for tracking purposes.

11. Announcements:

No NFA update this month.

Student evaluations have begun this week.

The next meeting is May 21st, please make sure to have a proxy if you are unable to attend this meeting.

12.	Good of the Order: The Health Sciences building has broken ground in Winnemucca.
13.	Adjournment Action

Bylaws revision:

Article VII. Senate Committees

7.5 Senate Standing Committees

Instructional Technology

Charges:

- a. Review and/or recommend policies dealing with instructional technology;
- b. Provide general guidance, review, and/or make recommendations for the following, but not limited to: learning management systems, interactive video, lecture capture, and other technologies used in an instructional environment. Note: *This guidance does not include individual issues that are better addressed through computer services or distance education offices*; and
- c. Review and make recommendations on topics assigned by the Faculty Senate Chair, the Faculty Senate Executive Committee, or the Faculty Senate.

Composition:

- d. The majority of members should come from academic faculty that integrate instructional technology into their courses;
- e. At least one member shall be from the Computer Services department;
- f. One or more members may come from other academic or administrative faculty; and
- g. Ex-officio members shall include: 1) an Instructional Designer and 2) the Dean for Distance Education or a designee.

Recommendations:

1.

Whereas, the Comps & Benefits Sub-committee has been tasked with finding an equitable option to the online multiplier.

The full-time faculty overload per credit rate of \$750 was established in 2011 and has not been increased. (Faculty Senate minutes 1/28/2011)

The part-time instructor rate of \$800 per credit was increased in Fall 2009 and is more than the current full-time rate.

Therefore, the committee recommends replacing the online multiplier with:

- a) A per credit rate increase to \$850 per credit and \$1,062.50 (850 x.25 = 212.50) per upper division credit.
- b) Implement for online, hybrid, IAV, and live courses with over 30 students enrolled. Additional sections to be paid equal to the number of credits given for the class, with the maximum enrollment cap of 60 or more, class caps should be set in increments of 30. The determination of additional sections will be based on enrollment after the 50% refund drop date for each semester.

 Classes where there are over 30 students enrolled during one semester with sections
 - with less than 10 students should run as independent studies. (31 39) Each additional section with over 10 students enrolled will be paid at the per credit rate.
- c) Implement Redevelopment of Existing Classes for classes that have substantial changes in course content or equipment shall be granted additional workload units with prior approval of the Dean. Workload units may be awarded for significant upgrade of course content based on an evaluation by the Dean if the extra work duties performed are above normal course maintenance. The amount of workload units may be determined by the extent of revisions required. This is not intended to be awarded annually. It is assumed that all instructors are continually updating the content and delivery of their courses on a routine basis as part of the assessment process.

 3(A)ii placement in policy- replace no provision for redevelopment of courses.
- d) Rate increase to be implemented July 1st 2021, and reviewed one year after implementation. Add to policy that "the compensation rate for overload pay is to be reviewed every 2 years."
- 2. Remove Online Multiplier additional credit wording and calculations.
- 3. Remove Telecourses wording. (No longer use this form of instruction)

Oversight of Student Teaching

If a student teacher is hired by the school district as a long-term substitute due to the excess workload created for the supervising faculty, 1.5 WU will be received for each instead of 1.0 WU

3(A)i Oversight of Student Teaching

For student teaching where students are enrolled in a 14-credit section, faculty will receive 1.0 workload unit for each student being evaluated. If a student teacher is hired by the school district as a long-term substitute due to the excess workload created for the supervising faculty, 1.5 WU will be received for each instead of 1.0 WU. If the supervising faculty is required to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.5 WU will be awarded per student instead of 1.0 WU.

5.

Substitute Instruction

If a full- time or part-time instructor takes over instruction of a full term (16-week) or 8- week course during a semester for a period of 2 weeks or over, the substitute instructor will be paid the appropriate rate for the class prorated by the number of weeks taught. For a course shorter than an 8-weeks it will be calculated by the percentage of days taught over the entire course, minimum of 5 consecutive instruction days.

If the full-time faculty member, who is not able to teach the class is in overload, the overload payment will be adjusted for the percentage of class time missed in relation to the amount paid to a substitute instructor.

6.

Cumulative student Enrollment

Raise 125 to 150 or greater, then that enrollment may constitute a full workload.

WORKLOAD AND OVERLOAD SUMMARY FULL-TIME FACULTY BY DEPARTMENT Fall 2019

			WORKLOA	AD.											0	VERLOAD							
		NON																					
	INSTRUC	INSTRUC		OVERLOAD								WEB MUL		WEB ADDIT		UPPER				INDEP		ADDIT	
DEPARTMENT	WL	WL	TOTAL WL	UNITS	C/O	ENROLL	FTE	NON-INST	WL UNIT	DEVELOP	WL UNIT	(online)	WL UNIT	SECT	WL UNIT	DIVISION	WL UNIT	INSTRUCT	WL UNIT	STUDY	WL UNIT	COMP	TOTAL
ARTS AND LETTERS	220.51	12.00	232.51	112.51	-	1340	290.66	\$ 4,500.00	6.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 20,250.00	27.00	\$ 23,250.00	31.00	\$ 5,685.00	7.58	\$ 30,000.00	40.00	\$ 697.50	0.93	\$ -	\$ 84,382.50
BUSINESS	86.25	12.00	98.25	38.25	-	512	102.40	\$ 4,500.00	6.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 8,437.50	11.25	\$ 11,250.00	15.00	\$ 2,250.00	3.00	\$ 2,250.00	3.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 28,687.50
CAREER AND																							
TECHNICAL																							
EDUCATION	366.25	3.00	369.25	132.25	-	1214	287.31	\$ -	-	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 6,187.50	8.25	\$ 93,000.00	124.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 15,360.00	\$ 114,547.50
COMPUTER																							
TECHNOLOGIES	104.63	12.00	116.63	41.63	-	424	89.34	\$ 6,750.00	9.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 4,312.50	5.75	\$ 4,500.00	6.00	\$ 2,535.00	3.38	\$ 13,125.00	17.50	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 31,222.50
HUMAN SERVICES	47.00	6.00	53.00	23.00	-	213	43.13	\$ 2,250.00	3.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 2,250.00	3.00	\$ 6,750.00	9.00	\$ 2,625.00	3.50	\$ 3,375.00	4.50	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 17,250.00
NURSING	166.33	2.50	168.83	39.52	-	836	280.26	\$ -	-	\$ -	0.00	\$ 3,435.00	4.58	\$ -	0.00	\$ 3,435.00	4.58	\$ 29,752.50	39.67	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 36,622.50
PARAMEDIC	49.77	3.00	52.17	37.17		72	24.93	\$ 2,250.00	3.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	-	\$ 25,627.50	34.17	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 27,877.50
RADIOLOGY	74.25	10.44	84.69	47.19		70	14.70	\$ -	-	\$ -	0.00	\$ 75.00	0.10	\$ -	0.00	\$ 7,492.50	9.99	\$ 27,825.00	37.10	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 35,392.50
MATH	84.03	4.00	88.03	28.03	-	508	121.53	\$ 3,000.00	4.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 8,062.50	10.75	\$ 2,250.00	3.00	\$ 562.50	0.75	\$ 6,750.00	9.00	\$ 397.50	0.53	\$ -	\$ 21,022.50
SCIENCE	78.32	19.00	97.32	6.15	-	586	150.88	\$ -	-	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -		\$ 3,750.00	5.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 3,750.00
SOCIAL SCIENCE	154.00	9.00	163.00	73.75	-	1148	229.60	\$ 6,750.00	9.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 17,625.00	23.50	\$ 27,000.00	36.00	\$ 1,687.50	2.25	\$ 6,750.00	9.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 59,812.50
TEACHER																							
EDUCATION	82.94	15.00	97.94	37.94	-	457	96.87	\$ 11,250.00	15.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 5,625.00	7.50	\$ -	0.00	\$ 7,455.00	9.94	\$ 4,125.00	5.50	\$ -	0.00	\$ -	\$ 28,455.00
TOTALS	1,514.28	107.94	1,621.62	617.39	0.00	7380	1,731.61	\$41,250.00	55.00	\$ -	0.00	\$ 70,072.50	93.43	\$ 75,000.00	100.00	\$ 39,915.00	53.22	\$ 246,330.00	328.44	\$1,095.00	1.46	\$ 15,360.00	\$ 489,022.50

EI	iminate	Online Mul	ltiplier and	Increase per Workload	Unit Pro	posal	
Based on Fall 2019 wo	rkload da	ta (FY2020)					
	Overload	,		Part -time Online	(estimated	from FY2020)	
					d by Sonja Si		
	WL units	Amount	Difference		WL	Amount	Difference
Online multiplier at \$750	93.43	\$ 70,072.50					
Total WL units + online mulitplier at \$750 (minus contract training)	617.39	\$ 463,042.50		Part-time online multipliers at \$800	47.88	\$ 38,243.75	
Total WL units no online mulitplier at \$800 (minus contract training)	523.96	\$ 419,168.00	\$ (43,874.50)	FY2019 Part-time salary		\$ 985,561.00	No impact
Total WL units no online mulitplier at \$850 (minus contract training)	523.96	\$ 445,366.00	\$ (17,676.50)	Increase to \$850	6.25%	\$ 1,047,159.00	\$ 61,598.00
Upper division classes are in	ncluded in th	e WL units		If the lower division		creased the upper	division would
Full-time Overload per WL	Lower	Upper		Part-time per WL	Lower	Upper	
Current rate	\$ 750.00	\$ 937.50		. a.c time per vvi		oppo.	
Proposed rate	\$ 800.00	\$ 1,000.00		Current rate	\$ 800.00	\$ 1,000.00	
Proposed rate	\$ 850.00	\$ 1,062.50		Proposed rate	\$ 850.00	\$ 1,062.50	
•	-				-	1	



POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: FACULTY WORKLOAD POLICY

Policy No.: 5.21

Department: Academic Affairs

Contact: Office of the Vice-President for Academic Affairs

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Policy	·	1
Proce	dures	2
	Contract Definitions	
2.0	Core Workload Components	2
3.0	Guidelines for Determining Faculty Workload Equivalencies	4
4.0	Overload Compensation	12
	4.1 Overload Limit	12
5.0	Underload	13
6.0	Exceptions	13
7.0	Faculty Incentive Stipends	13

Policy

The guidelines provided in the Great Basin College Faculty Workload Policy are based in policy and enrollment-based funding formulas of the NSHE Board of Regents and the Nevada State Legislature. As derived from these sources, the major portion of faculty workload should relate directly to courses being taught for credit, with a core teaching workload of 14 to 16 credits per semester, 30 credits for an academic year, and in consideration of expected students-per-class ratios given in the funding formulas. The instructional credit hour is the traditional basis for determining the faculty work effort. However, it is also recognized that some workload credit may be granted for alternative duties and assignments.

The basic guidelines for assessing faculty workload, based on instruction and reassigned duties, are outlined within this document. For the purposes of this document, the standard for workload calculation is the **instructional credit** corresponding to 15 classroom hours of lecture time or 45 hours of contact time in clinical and laboratory settings. The **workload unit (WU)** will be used to calculate faculty workload and will be gauged by equivalence to an instructional credit (workload units are synonymous with instructional units). As examples, a typical three-credit lecture class lasting for one 15-week semester counts as three workload units, and a typical one-credit, three-hour/week lab component of a class lasting for one 15-week semester counts as one workload unit. An average core workload is considered teaching 15 instructional credits per semester (equaling 30 credits for an academic year). Workload units may also be reassigned for non-instructional duties, for student contact hours in clinical and laboratory instruction, and for high total student enrollment with individual instructors.

Once a full core workload level is reached for an individual faculty, any additional instructional or alternative duties shall be considered as overload and compensated in accordance with the overload provisions of this Faculty Workload Policy. If the workload of a faculty member is less than the stated amount for the position, that individual shall be assigned additional classes or appropriate alternative duties, on or off campus, to compensate for the core workload deficiency.

Commented [DJ1]: I believe that the OFFICE should be noted, not the POSITION

Commented [DBJ2]: Adjusted formatting and page numbers

Commented [DBJ3]: average instead of usual

Commented [DBJ4]: equaling to signify that the core workload is 30 credits per academic year

Within the first month of each semester, the Office of the Vice President for Academic Affairs (VPAA) will review the instructional credits and other workload units of each faculty. The workload of each faculty must be approved by the VPAA. In cases where no agreement can be reached between the faculty and the VPAA, the faculty member may appeal to the Senate Executive Committee, which will make recommendations to the VPAA. Subject to additional comment and recommendations by the College President and the President's Council, the VPAA will make the final decision on workload disputes.

This policy sets forth only the guidelines for determining faculty workload. This document does not address individual job descriptions.

Procedures

1.0 Contract Definitions

"B" Contract – This is the basic contract for teaching faculty and is for service during the ten-month academic year. Faculty with "B" contracts are entitled to regular state and federal holidays and student breaks in conformity with the adopted academic calendar. These faculty may accept supplemental appointments for services for periods of time not included in their "B" contract following college policies and guidelines.

"B+" Contract – This contract covers the ten-month period of a "B" contract, plus a specified number of additional days of work. This work may be allocated as additional, non-instructional days, as additional courses of teaching, or as a combination of the two. The additional work will be expressed as a number equivalent to the number of days of extra work required. The value of each "plus" day will by calculated by multiplying the base salary of the "B" contract by 0.5%. The daily value is then multiplied by the number of "plus" days to be worked. The projected dates of the work and a description of the work to be completed in the "plus days" must be specified in the individual contract and approved in advance by the hiring authority. If the additional days are instructional days, then no overload pay will be given for teaching the additional course(s). "Plus" days will not be granted for attendance of professional meetings, seminars, workshops, judging and similar activities outside of the academic calendar unless attendance is required or approved in advance by the administration. "B+" contracts are issued annually based on work expected or known to be done for one academic year, independent of any previous year's contract. If appropriate professional development funds are available, these may be used outside of the regular contract days, following standard approval guidelines.

"A" Contract – This contract covers the full calendar year. The expectation for a member of the Instructional Faculty on an "A" contract is 36 workload units. "A" contracts are normally reserved for personnel engaged in year-round programs designated as such by the president, or with teaching positions that include a significant amount of administrative duties within a department. "A" contract faculty and professional staff are obligated for assigned duties throughout the year except for official state holidays. "A" contract faculty may take annual leave when desired if it does not conflict with normally assigned or specially required duties of the unit. The employee's job description will specify all duties that occur outside of the academic year.

All "A," "B," and "B+" contracts are considered annual contracts for the purpose of benefits eligibility. Full-time faculty are eligible to participate in the retirement program on the effective overload provisions of this Faculty Workload Policy.

2.0 Core Workload Components (Each faculty must meet all criteria.)

Guidelines and descriptions are provided in Section IV below to be used in determining workload units, contact hours, student enrollment criteria, etc., as used in this section.

A. "B" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position - 1.0 FTE

 Faculty will carry 14 to 16 workload units each semester or 270 student contact hours in a semester (based on 18 contact hours per week). If using student enrollment, each faculty member will have a minimum of 125 students enrolled per semester in the equivalent of three-credit classes. Commented [DJ5]:

- 2. An annual faculty contract is 30 workload units or 540 student contact hours per academic year (two semesters). If using student enrollment, there will be a minimum of 250 students per academic year. (NOTE: Faculty may use one form of workload calculation one semester and another the next, as long as they meet full workload equivalencies in aggregate for the year.)
- 3. Each faculty is required to schedule and post a minimum of 5 office hours per week for student consultation and academic advising.
- Each faculty is expected to have as many as 20 student advisees at any given time as part of normal teaching duties.
- 5. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is required.
- 6. Instructional faculty are expected to spend a minimum of 35 hours per week on their assigned duties. At least 5 hours will be scheduled as on-campus office hours. The remainder will consist of instructional activities, institutional service, professional development, or other duties, depending on the needs of specific faculty, departments and programs. 40 hours per week shall be the primary basis for determining the workload of non-instructional faculty.

B. "B" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position, Contract of 0.5 FTE or greater but less than 1.0 FTE

- Faculty carrying less than a full-time contract shall be assigned a core workload based on their proportional equivalent of a full-time contract.
 - Example 1: Contract of 0.5 FTE Faculty will have a total of 15 workload units per academic year, or 15 workload units in one semester. 50% contact hour or 50% student enrollment calculations may also be used.
 - Example 2: Contract of 0.6 FTE Faculty will have a total of 18 workload units per academic year. 60% contact hour or 60% student enrollment calculations may be used.

 Example 3: Contract of 0.8 FTE Faculty will have a total of 24 workload units per academic
- year. 80% contact hour or 80% student enrollment calculations may be used.

 A minimum of 5 hours per week of scheduled and posted office hours are required.
- 3. Student advising is expected in proportion to the percentage of a full-time contract.
- 4. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is expected.
- Fractional full-time faculty must be on campus in a proportional equivalent to the hours required for full-time faculty, as determined by the fractional amount of their contract.

C. "B+" Contract

- Workload expectations during the "B" portion of the "B+" contract are the same as for "B" contract faculty.
- The days to be worked outside of the standard academic year (the "+" portion) and the duties to be performed during those days must be specified in writing and approved in advance by the hiring authority.
- 3. In general, "plus" days will be given only for work relating directly to instruction and functioning of the college. "Plus" days will not be given for attendance at professional meetings, conferences, seminars, judging, or similar events unless attendance is required or approved in advance by the administration.

D. "A" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position - 1.0 FTE

- An annual "A" contract for instructional faculty requires 36 workload units, 675 total student contact hours, or a minimum student enrollment of 275 students (in the equivalent of 3-credit classes) per full calendar year. (NOTE: Faculty may use one form of workload calculation one semester and another the next, as long as full workload equivalencies are met for the year.)
- Additional administrative, instructional, or departmental duties must be completed throughout the year as described in the position job description.
- 3. Each faculty is required to schedule and post a minimum of 5 office hours per week for student consultation and academic advising.
- 4. Each faculty is expected to have as many as 25 student advisees at any given time as part of normal teaching duties.
- 5. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is required.
- 6. Faculty must be on campus not less than 35 hours per week to perform their duties, unless assigned off-campus duties contributing to the total of 35 hours per week. 40 hours per week shall be the primary basis for determining the workload of non-instructional faculty.

E. Part-time Instructor (Letter of Appointment)

Part-time instructors may carry a maximum of 6 workload units per semester for instructional purposes, 19.5 hours per week for non-instructional purposes, or a combination of the two, as described below.

Calculation of Maximum Credit Hours and/or Clock Hours GBC Part-time Instructors or Part-time Employees May Work

Basic Rules:

- 1. The general rule for part-time employees is that they may work only 49% of full-time equivalency. If they exceed the 49%, then GBC must pay them benefits which are in excess of 20% of salary.
- 2. Part-time hourly employees may not work more than 79 hours per month or 19.5 hours per week.
- 3. Part-time instructors may not teach more than 6 credit hours for three consecutive months, except in special circumstances with prior approval of administration.
- 4. There are some circumstances where exceeding the 49% limit may be approved for periods of up to 60 or 90 days, but all exceptions to the 49% limit require prior administrative approval.

Use the table below to calculate an individual's percent of full-time employment. If the individual is both working as a Part-time instructor and as a part-time hourly employee, you must sum the percentage for each type of employment.

Part-tir	ne Instructor/Part-time Emplo	yee Calculation Grid		
FT% for l	Hourly	FT% for Cre	dit Hours	
Weekly Clock Hrs Paid Work	Weekly Percent of Full-time	Credit Hours	Percent of Full-time*	
1	2.5%	0.5	2.5%	
2	5.0%	1	5.0%	
3	7.5%	1.5	7.5%	
4	10.0%	2	10.0%	
5	12.5%	2.5	12.5%	
6	15.0%	3	15.0%	
7	17.5%	3.5	17.5%	
8	20.0%	4	20.0%	
9	22.5%	4.5	22.5%	
10	25.0%	5	25.0%	
11	27.5%	5.5	27.5%	
12	30.0%	6	30.0%	
13	32.5%	6.5	32.5%	
14	35.0%	7	35.0%	
15	37.5%	7.5	37.5%	
16	40.0%	8	40.0%	
17	42.5%	8.5	42.5%	
18	45.0%	9	45.0%	
19	47.5%	9.5	47.5%	

Each credit is worth 7.0% rounded to appropriate amount.

3.0 Guidelines for Determining Faculty Workload Equivalencies

Faculty workload determinations are based on faculty instructional duties ("A" below) and non-instructional assignments or reassignments ("B" below). Some functions are recognized only as overload activities and not part of the core workload ("C" below). Faculty incentives (Section 7.0) are not considered as part of the workload, but only as incentives outside of workload for completion of tasks that may benefit the college.

The definition of the workload unit was given in the preface. The basis for the workload assessments provided below is the assumed equivalency to the workload unit as based on the instructional credit. The guidelines for determining workload units for situations other than standard classroom lecture situations are given for several potential settings. It is recognized that all possible situations and activities may not be included. Faculty and the appropriate administrator should negotiate activities not mentioned.

A. Instructional Duties

The first consideration for calculating an individual's workload is which of three methods will be used; the choice is from credit-based workload units (section "1" below), in-class student contact hours (section "2" below), or by total student enrollment (section "3" below).

1. Workload units based directly on instructional credits

a. Lecture Courses

For traditional lecture courses, workload units shall be assigned equal to the number of instructional credits being taught. It is assumed that the allotment of credits compared to work required is already incorporated into these numbers. This is the equivalency defined in the preface.

b. Development of New Courses

Faculty who develop new instructional courses shall be granted workload units equal to the number of credits to be awarded for the course when offered to students. The course development must be completed by the end of the semester in which the workload units are awarded. New course development may occur prior to its first instruction, or concurrently with instruction of the course the first time (in this latter case, the faculty member would receive workload units double that of the instructional credits of the course). Workload units for new course development may only be granted the first time the course is taught for GBC; subsequent teaching of the course by any instructor will not include course development workload units.

- New course development for any course or conversion of a previously developed course to the online or other format will be recognized in an individual's workload only with prior approval of the VPAA.
- iii. There is no provision to receive workload compensation for redevelopment for a course that has previously been developed or delivered, except for those classes approved to be converted to a distance format (there is no workload consideration for "revamping" courses). It is assumed that all instructors are continually updating the content and delivery of their courses on a routine basis as part of the assessment process.
- iii. Any new course that is developed will only be approved in workload consideration for one development, whether it be for live, online, or any other delivery. Courses should initially be developed with the intent that in the future they may be delivered either online or live, or in some combination of delivery methods.
- There are no workload considerations for the development of "Special Topics" types of classes.

c. Redevelopment of Existing Classes

Classes that have substantial changes in course content or equipment shall be granted additional workload units with prior approval of the Dean. Workload units may be awarded for significant upgrade of course content based on an evaluation by the Dean if the extra work duties performed are above normal course maintenance. The amount of workload units to be determined by the extent of revisions required. This is not intended to be awarded annually. It is assumed that all instructors are continually updating the content and delivery of their courses on a routine basis as part of the assessment process.

Commented [DJ6]: Moved this verbiage from the appendix

d. Development of Upper Division General Education Seminars

Faculty who develop a new upper division general education seminar (specifically, INT 339, 349, 359 or 369) on a topic that has not been presented before shall receive workload units for the development of a new course, as described in section "b." above.

i. Workload considerations for the development of new INT seminars will be approved for only one class for each of the four seminars each academic year. All other sections that are offered should be previously developed seminars or must be developed without additional workload consideration. This is in consideration that many excellent seminars covering many topical areas have already been developed and that any of these topics could be considered for presentation more than once. The decision of which single class during a year may receive workload development consideration will come from the respective department administering the particular seminar.

e. Additional Sections for a Class with Over 30 Students

For online, hybrid, IAV, and live courses with over 30 students enrolled.

- i. Additional sections will be paid equal to the number of credits given for the classes with the maximum enrollment cap of 60 or more, class caps should be set in increments of 30. The determination of additional sections will be based on enrollment in a class after the 50% refund drop date for each semester.
- ii. Classes where there are multiple sections of the same course during one semester with additional sections less than 10 students should run as independent studies. (31 – 39) Section 3-C(1) Each additional section with 10 students or more enrolled will be paid at the per credit rate.

f. Distance Education

Distance education includes interactive video (IAV), online, hybrid/IAV, hybrid, and telecourse modes of instruction, as described below. In order to teach through any mode of distance education, the instructor will have been trained in the use of the technology and the content area and will provide for assessment to ensure the use of quality teaching methods

- i. Interactive Video Courses (IAV). IAV classes are those having 50% or more of the contact hours associated with the course delivered through the interactive video medium to one or more sites away from the site of delivery. These shall have the same workload unit value as the number of credits associated with the single course number. Individual faculty are discouraged from teaching more than three IAV courses (9 credits) during any semester.
- ii. Online Courses. Online courses are those having 60% or more of the contact hours associated with the course delivered through WebCT, e-mail, the Internet, chat rooms, bulletin boards, or other synchronous or asynchronous computerized methods.

Online classes shall have workload units given equal to the number of credits given for the class unless the class has more than 20 students enrolled. With 21 or more students in a class, the instructor will be given workload units 1.25 times the number of credits for that class, but only if the class is given a maximum enrollment cap of 30 or more. The determination for the workload multiplier for online classes will be based on enrollment in a class as of the day after the 50% refund drop date. If an online class has low enrollment, the instructor and VPAA will jointly determine if the class is to be taught as scheduled, taught as independent study, or cancelled.

Example 1: An instructor has three 3-credit online classes having respective enrollments of 30, 25, and 20. These represent nine instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

Class #1 (30 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU

Commented [DJ7]: Moved verbiage from the appendix

```
| Class #2 (25 students): 3 credits x 1.25 | = 3.75 |
| Class #3 (20 students): 3 credits | = 3 |
| Total: = 10.5 WU|
| Workload for three classes (9 credits): | 10.5 WU|
```

Example 2: An instructor has five different online classes. Two are 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 18. One is a 2-credit class with 11 students and two are 1-credit classes with respective enrollments of 14 and 38. These represent 10 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
      Class #1 (24 students): 3 credits x 1.25
      = 3.75 WU

      Class #2 (18 students): 3 credits
      = 3

      Class #3 (11 students): 2 credits
      = 2

      Class #4 (14 students): 1 credit
      = 1

      Class #5: (28 students): 1 credit x 1.25
      = 1.25

      Total = 11 WU

      Workload for five classes (10 credits):
      11 WU
```

Example 3: An instructor has four different online classes. Two are 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 38. Two are 1-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 32. These represent 8 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1 (24 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU
Class #2 (28 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75
Class #3 (24 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25
Class #4 (22 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25
Total = 10 WU
Workload for four classes (8 credits): 10 WU
```

- iii. Hybrid Courses. Hybrid classes incorporate at least two different modes of presentation of course material. These may include (but not necessarily be limited to) live lectures, IAV, and online modes. Unless there is 60% or more delivered online (and thus calculated as an online class), the workload units will equal the instructional credits.
- iv. Telecourses. A telecourse is one whose delivery is by audiotape, videotape, CD, CD-ROM, or DVD—typically without regular interaction between students and instructor or between a student and other students. A telecourse will have a section number with the letter "T" in the second place that indicates its status. A telecourse receives 0.05 workload units for each student enrolled, times the number of credits for the course.

Example: An instructor has two 3-credit telecourses having respective enrollments of 24 and 18. The same instructor also has one 2-credit telecourse with 11 students. These represent 8 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

v. Online and IAV Course Development and Adaptation.

- A. Online courses. Workload units may be awarded for course development or adaptation specifically to the online format. When adapting an existing course to be taught online for the first time within the institution, workload units equal to the instructional credits may be awarded. This may be awarded only once for any course within the institution for extra workload units, and the material must subsequently be made available for other GBC faculty to use to teach the same course online.
- B. IAV courses. A number of workload units one-half the number of course instructional credits may be assigned for course adaptation to the IAV format. When adapting an existing course to be taught via IAV for the first time within the institution, the instructional credits may be multiplied by 1.5 to calculate workload units for that class. This may be awarded only once for any course within the institution for extra workload units, and the material must subsequently be made available for other GBC faculty to use to teach the same course via IAV. This will not include INT Seminars (339, 349, 359, 369) for which course development workload units are being awarded.

g. Theatre Performance Assignments

Three workload units will be awarded for supervision of one main stage production and oversight of one lab performance during a single semester by a designated theatre instructor.

h. Practica, Internships, Work Co-ops

These types of courses do not take place in a classroom or laboratory setting as a principal portion of the class. They are generally related in some way to practical experience in a work setting or to some other manner of independent work or production. The students will often work under the supervision of a supervisor not part of the college but may at times be working on independent projects supervised by a college faculty member. Faculty will generally not meet with students on more than a weekly to monthly basis because there is outside supervision.

If these types of courses have more than seven students enrolled in the same class, that class will be rated for workload units by the number of instructional credits. If there are seven or less students in any of these types of classes, workload will be rated by the number of students enrolled in the class (or combination of classes) and the number of credits being awarded. The number of combined students shall be multiplied by the number of course credits and divided by 15 to calculate the number of workload units awarded.

Example: An instructor has a 3-credit internship class with an enrollment of 9 students, a 6-credit practicum class with 3 students, and a 4-credit work co-op with 2 students. These represent 11 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

Class #1:(more than 7 students) \rightarrow 3.0 WU
Class #2:(less than 7 students) 3 students x 6 credits/15 \rightarrow 1.2 WU
Class #3:(less than 7 students) 2 students x 4 credits/15 \rightarrow 0.5 WU
Workload for these three classes (11 credits): 4.7 WU.
The assigned workload for these classes is 4.7 WU.

i. Oversight of Student Teaching

For student teaching where students are enrolled in a 14-credit section, faculty will receive 1.0 workload unit for each student being evaluated. If a student teacher is hired by the school district as a long-term substitute due to the excess workload created for the supervising faculty, 1.5 WU will be received for each instead of 1.0 WU. If the

supervising faculty is required to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.5 WU will be awarded per student instead of 1.0 WU.

j. Oversight of Early Childhood Education Practica/Internships

For practica/internships where students are enrolled in a 6-8 credit section, faculty will receive 0.5 WU for each student being evaluated if the supervising faculty has to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.0 WU will be awarded per student instead of 0.5 WU.

k. Education Field Experience Courses

All field experience courses for education B.A. programs will be worth at least 1.0 WU unless the course has excessive placements (see scale below). The workload units will be regulated through the creation of new sections.

```
1 - 16 placements = 1 workload unit
17-28 placements = 2 workload units
29-40 placements = 3 workload units
41-52 placements = 4 workload units
53-64 placements = 5 workload units
65-76 placements = 6 workload units
77-88 placements = 7 workload units
```

1. Team Teaching

Faculty involved in team teaching shall divide the workload units in proportion to their assigned effort. The proportion shall be determined and agreed to by the faculty involved and the VPAA.

m. Teaching Concurrent Courses

When teaching two or more live courses concurrently, the workload will be assigned as the maximum number of credits given for any one of the concurrently taught sections, so long as the total number of students in all concurrently taught sections does not exceed 16. If total enrollment in concurrent course sections exceeds 16, faculty will receive workload credits equivalent to the credits of the one course with maximum credits, plus 0.05 workload unit for each student enrollment above 16, times the number of credits for the course(s).

n. Technical On-site Training (TOT)

These are courses taught at a facility that is not operated by GBC. TOT courses have workload units equal to the instructional units for classes with enrollments of up to 12 students. If total enrollment in TOT classes exceeds 12, faculty will receive workload credits equivalent to the credits of the one course plus 0.05 workload units for each student enrollment above 12, times the number of credits for the course.

o. Substitute Instruction

If a full-time or part-time instructor takes over instruction of a full term (16-week) 8-week course during a semester for a period of 2 weeks or over, the substitute instructor will be paid the appropriate rate for the class prorated by the number of weeks taught. For a course shorter than an 8-weeks it will be calculated by the percentage of days taught over the entire course, minimum of 5 consecutive instruction days. If the full-time faculty member, who is not able to teach the class is in overload, the overload payment will be adjusted for the percentage of class time missed in relation to the amount paid to a substitute instructor.

2. Contact Hours.

Clinical and Laboratory Settings

For laboratory and health science clinical courses which do not follow the standard lecture credit-hour model, workload units may be calculated using student contact hours. Contact hours represent that time spent directly teaching students in classroom, laboratory, or clinical settings, with the hours being counted as set forth in the official college course schedule. 18 contact hours will be rated as equaling 1 workload unit (i.e., 18hours/week for 15 weeks is 15 workload units).

Example 1: An instructor spends eight weeks teaching two 3-credit lecture classes, one lab that meets three hours per week (a one-credit lab) and supervises students in a clinical setting 12 hours per week. The same instructor finishes the last seven weeks of the semester teaching the same two 3-credit lecture classes, two 3-hour labs per week, and spends 4 hours per week in clinical supervision of students. The total instructional credits being taught is about 10 and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

-First eight weeks-

-Last seven weeks-

273 total hr/18 hr/WU = **15.2 WU** This represents 0.2 overload units.

Example 2: For a semester, an instructor has two 4-credit classes (3 hr lecture + 3 hr lab each) and two 3-credit lecture classes. The total credits being taught is 14 and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

 Lectures:
 4 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks →180 hr

 Labs:
 2 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks →90 hr

 Total Hours:
 270 hr

270 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15 WU This represents a full workload.

Example 3: For a semester, an instructor has three 4-credit classes (3 hr lecture + 3 hr lab each). The total credits being taught is 12 and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

 Lectures:
 3 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks →135 hr

 Labs:
 3 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks →135 hr

 Total Hours:
 270 hr

270 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15 WU This is a full workload.

Workload units for an individual during a single semester may be calculated using instructional credits, contact hours, or total student enrollment, but not by any combination of these options.

3. Cumulative Student Enrollment.

Sum of Class Sizes

Within some sections of certain courses the enrollment of large numbers of student is reasonably predictable. If, based on past enrollment history, it can be reasonably projected that there will be high enrollment numbers for classes taught by a single faculty member, that faculty member may base workload on enrollment. If aggregate enrollment in all sections being taught by a single faculty during a single semester is 125 150 or greater (in the equivalent of 3-credit classes), then that enrollment may constitute a full workload. If total student enrollment in the equivalent of 3-credit classes is greater than 150 students, then the faculty will be entitled to overload payment. Extra workload units will be awarded at the rate of 0.025 WU per student times the number of credits for the class for every student past the count of 150.

Example 1: An instructor has three 3-credit classes with enrollments of 39, 46, and 41 students. This is 9 instructional credits and not a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

39 + 46 + 41 = 126

This is more than 125 total students and is a full load.

Example 2: An instructor has four 3-credit classes with enrollments of 38, 51, 43, and 28. This is 12 instruction credits and not a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

38 + 51 + 43 + 28 = 160

Since this is more than 150 students, this is an overload.

160-150=10

10 students x 0.025 WU/credit x 3 credits = 0.75 WU of overload

Example 3: An instructor has five 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 28, 21, 33, 16, and 18 students. This represents 15 credits of instruction and is a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

28 + 21 + 33 + 16 + 18 = 116

This is less than 125, but it is a full workload based on credits.

Workload units for an individual during a single semester may be calculated using instructional credits, contact hours, or total student enrollment, but not by combination of these options.

B. Workload Units for Non-Instructional Assignments

The following workload units for assigned or reassigned non-instructional duties may be added into the faculty instructional workload to determine the total faculty workload. Workload units are given below for the listed assignments. If a faculty workload is calculated on contact hours, the workload units for each of the following will be considered equal to contact hours.

1. Department Chairs

Department Chairs of departments that are not within a larger division (that has a chair) will normally be assigned three workload units per semester for these duties. There is no credit assignment for departments that are within larger divisions.

2. Division Chairs (tentative)

Division Chairs shall be assigned 50% of a full workload and a B+10 contract for performing the administrative duties required of the position. 50% of the position will be dedicated to instruction.

3. Faculty Senate Chair

Faculty Senate Chair shall be assigned six workload units (or 14 hours per week for non-instructional faculty) each semester. There will also be a \$1000 stipend per semester for the academic year for performing this duty.

4. Program Supervisor

A Program Supervisor will typically oversee a Bachelor's degree program for a three (3) workload unit reassignment. However, with sufficient program duties and workload, certain Bachelor degree emphases, Associate's degrees, or stand-alone certificate programs may apply to be considered for workload reassignment. A Program Supervisor may be awarded workload unit reassignment based on an evaluation by the faculty member's supervising Dean if the extra work duties performed are above or in addition to a normal faculty workload. Workload reassignment for Program Supervisor will require documentation of the workload and approval by the Dean. Workload reassignment will be awarded proportionately with the premise that one day per week extra for performed duties is equivalent to a three (3) workload unit reassignment and/or equivalent plus days as approved by the supervising Dean. Workload reassignments shall be reviewed annually.

5. Lead Faculty

A Lead Faculty is a faculty member determined by the department and the Dean who is teaching within a degree program that requires a limited level of coordination and leadership for an area not predominantly overseen by a department chair or program supervisor. There is no workload reassignment for this role as the duties are essentially the same as for other faculty. This individual is the primary contact and coordinator for faculty within a program. Lead Faculty status may be reflected in the management role for annual evaluation.

6. Workload for Non-instructional Faculty

If a non-instructional faculty member is involved in duties not normally a part of the job description (e.g., elected as Faculty Senate Chair), then 7 hours per week is the equivalent of 3 workload units. That faculty member shall be given time reassigned from regular functions in this ratio to accommodate alternate duties. If non-instructional faculty are given instructional responsibilities as part of their job function by their supervisor, with time provided out of their regular work time, then there will be no additional compensation to perform these duties. If non-instructional faculty take on instructional responsibilities in addition to their regular job function, and these responsibilities are performed outside of their regular work time, they shall be compensated at the Part time faculty rate.

7. Recruitment

All faculty are expected to participate in student recruitment to some degree. If a faculty member anticipates participation in extensive recruiting tours or programs during a coming semester that is not already considered a part of faculty workload for other duties (e.g., Program Supervisor or Division Chair), then the instructor may submit a proposal of the recruitment activity to the VPAA. As a general rule, one workload unit = (work hours/15), not including travel time. There must be prior approval by the VPAA before recruitment can be used as workload reassignment.

C. Activities Recognized Only as Overload

Activities within this section may not be included within the core faculty workload. They may only be awarded as overload workload units.

1. Independent Study

An independent study class is one which is offered specifically for a very small number of students (about five or less) wherein the students are expected to principally work independently without meeting in the regularly scheduled time blocks. For calculation of workload units, add the total number of independent study students in all sections, divide by 15, and multiply by the number of course credits. Example: An instructor has one and three students enrolled respectively in two different 3-credit independent study classes (this is in addition to having a full workload of lecture and online classes). $4/15 \times 3 = 0.8 \text{ WU}$.

2. Self-Paced Courses

A self-paced course is one offered for students to work independently and at their own pace without attendance in regular scheduled time blocks. Self-paced classes may be delivered through a variety of formats for any number of students with minimal contact with the instructor. For calculation of workload units, add the total number of self-paced students in all sections being taught by a faculty member, divide by 15, and multiply by the number of course credits. Examples: (1) An instructor has four and eight students enrolled respectively in two different 3-credit self-paced classes. Calculation: $12/15 \times 3 = 2.4 \text{ WU}$. (2) An instructor has nine students enrolled in one 1-credit self-paced class. Calculation: $9/15 \times 1 = 0.6 \text{ WU}$.

3. Academic Advisement

Every instructor is expected to advise up to 20 different students every semester. If an instructor advises more than 20 students during a semester, and if that advisement is not already considered as a part of workload for other duties (e.g., Program Supervisor or Division Chair), then the instructor shall hand in a record of student advisement to the VPAA and shall be given overload at the same rate per student as provided for in section IV, A, 3 (Student Enrollment, Class Size overload): students x $0.025 \, x$ credits = overload WU

4. Contract Training

Faculty will be eligible for differential pay when teaching contract training courses under the following situations:

- a. The course is taught at an underground mine site, surface mine, or industrial site.
- The course is a contract course, not a regularly scheduled course taught to mine or industrial workers at the Faculty member's home GBC campus.
- c. The course requires travel to the training site other than the normal travel to the Faculty member's regular GBC campus.
- d. The differential pay will be paid for by the outside contractor's training fee.

Compensation for these activities is given in the section below.

Faculty providing off-campus contract training will be compensated as follows:

- For teaching a training course at an underground mine the differential rate will be twenty dollars (\$20.00) per student per credit.
- b. For teaching a training a course at a surface mine or other industrial sit the differential rate will be fifteen dollars (\$15.00) per student per credit.

This rate will not affect either the faculty member's overload status or normal workload.

4.0 Overload Compensation

For any semester in which a faculty member is carrying a workload above the amount stated in this document as a core workload, that faculty member shall be compensated above the amount of the regular salary. During the semester in which the faculty member is working in an overload situation, the individual faculty member and the VPAA shall jointly decide if extra pay for the overload credits or a reduced credit load the next semester (from fall to spring semesters only) is appropriate. Workload credits from one academic year may not be carried over to the next academic year. Core workload arrangements must be approved by the VPAA before overload agreements can be made. Workload units – rounded to the nearest tenth – above the core workload shall be considered overload. The compensation rate for overload pay will be the number of overload workload units times the highest part time faculty per-credit pay rate. The compensation rate for overload pay is to be reviewed every 2 years.

4.1 Overload Limit

The maximum overload any GBC faculty member may have in any semester is 9 workload units (WU). All overload for any semester must be approved in advance by the VPAA. In determining the maximum overload for one semester, certain types of overload may be excluded in determining if a faculty member has met the maximum overload of 9 WU. These exclusions include the following:

- A. Exclude up to 3 WU of non-instructional, reassigned duties.
- B. Exclude any classes which are not taught 100% within the published regular 15-week semester.
- C. If online classes are being taught and workload is received for classes with enrollment of any course split into more than one section, up to 6 WU may be excluded from the maximum allowed for overload.
- D. Do not include the .25 WU/credit adjustment for certain online classes of large size (workload policy, Chapter 5, Section 3).
- E. Exclude independent study WU.
- F. Any WU above 9 after the above listed considerations must have the approval of the faculty member's supervisor in advance.

5.0 Underload

Any faculty carrying less than the stated number of workload units for their position in any given semester will have duties assigned to them by the VPAA from the following options:

- A. Be given a larger credit load the next semester (may be carried over only from fall to spring semesters; may not be carried over to the next academic year).
- B. Be given a course previously scheduled to be taught by a Part-time instructor.
- C. Schedule a course or courses to be offered in the late semester schedule.

- D. Offer one or more short courses targeted for specific groups.
- E. Be assigned duties by appropriate administrators that relate to the faculty member's function to the institution. These duties should be equal in time and effort to that of the number of workload units the faculty member is short.

6.0 Exceptions

Exceptions to the workload policy will only be allowed if exceptional circumstances force deviations from this policy. All exceptions to the normal implementation of the workload policy as set forth above must be approved by the VPAA. Exceptions will be granted only on a semester-by-semester basis and generally only for one semester.

7.0 Faculty Incentive Stipends

All activities listed below must be approved in advance by the VPAA. Performance of these activities and functions must have a demonstrable benefit to GBC. These are not to be counted as part of a faculty core workload or overload unless agreed to in advance by the VPAA.

- A. Leadership Positions in Professional and College Associations. The faculty members may receive a stipend for taking on a leadership position in a professional or college association. These must be elected offices within widely recognized organizations and have titles such as President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, or Program Director. Not more than one leadership position will be recognized for any single academic year. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be clearly reflected in the performance of related duties. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPAA in consultation with the involved faculty.
- B. Principal Investigator (or the equivalent) for a Grant Proposal. Unless an instructor is paid through the grant, a faculty member may receive a stipend for participating in writing a grant and performing functions required of a grant. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be reflected in all phases of the grant and related activities. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPAA in consultation with the involved faculty.
- C. Authorship of Professional Articles. Having a peer-reviewed professional article published regionally, nationally, or internationally may result in the faculty member receiving a stipend. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be clearly reflected in the publication together with the faculty's name. The impending publication of professional articles must be reported to the VPAA prior to publication. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of publication.
- D. Authorship of Book or Monograph. If a faculty has a book or monograph published after the manuscript's acceptance by a standard commercial or academic publishing company, a stipend may be awarded to the faculty only if the publication is not to generate royalties for the author. This is providing that GBC's name appears in the publication in association with the author's name. The impending publication of books must be reported to the VPAA prior to publication. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1500 may be paid as determined by the VPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of publication.
- E. Shows, Performances, and Competitive Exhibitions. A stipend may be awarded for planning, preparing, and executing a show, performance, or exhibition if these are not associated with classes being taught or other normal duties associated with the faculty job. This stipend will be considered only if the faculty member is receiving no other compensation for the activity. These activities must be approved in advance by the VPAA, followed by clear documentation of completion. The show, performance, or exhibition must be discussed with and approved by the VPAA before the beginning of the semester of its occurrence. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of completion.
- F. Hosting a Seminar or Conference. These activities may bring a stipend payment to faculty if the seminars or conferences are deemed as positively affecting the standing and image of the College. The anticipated work hours involved in planning, preparing, and executing the seminar or conference will be documented and delivered to the VPAA in advance for approval. GBC's name must appear prominently in all aspects of the seminar or conference. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1500 may be paid as determined by the VPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of completion.

G.	considered for stipends on a case demonstrable benefit to GBC. The	clear benefit to the college, but not specifically e-by-case basis. Performance of these activities hese will not be counted as part of a faculty corn ne VPAA. All "Other" activities must be approve	and functions must have a e workload or overload
Approve	ed by Faculty Senate: May 13, 2016	005, April 28, 2009, May 8, 2012, February 25, 201 ny questions, corrections, or additions.	14, and June 14, 2016
5.21 Fac	ulty Workload Policy	June 14, 2016 Date of approval	Page 15 of 15



POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: FACULTY WORKLOAD POLICY

Policy No.: 5.21

Department: Academic Affairs

Contact: Office of the Vice-President for Academic and Student Affairs

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Policy	<i>y</i> 1
Proce	dures
1.0	Contract Definitions
	_2
2.0	Core Workload Components32
3.0	Guidelines for Determining Faculty Workload Equivalencies
4.0	Overload Compensation
	4.1 Overload Limit
5.0	Underload
	-12 13
6.0	Exceptions
	1213
7.0	7.0 Faculty Incentive Stipends
	12
APPI	NDIX: Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines and Workload14

Policy

The guidelines provided in the Great Basin College Faculty Workload Policy are based in policy and enrollment-based funding formulas of the NSHE Board of Regents and the Nevada State Legislature. As derived from these sources, the major portion of faculty workload should relate directly to courses being taught for credit, with a core teaching workload of 14 to 16 credits per semester, 30 credits for an academic year, and in consideration of expected students-per-class ratios given in the funding formulas. The instructional credit hour is the traditional basis for determining the faculty work effort. However, it is also recognized that some workload credit may be granted for alternative duties and assignments.

The basic guidelines for assessing faculty workload, based on instruction and reassigned duties, are outlined within this document. For the purposes of this document, the standard for workload calculation is the **instructional credit** corresponding to 15 classroom hours of lecture time or 45 hours of contact time in clinical and laboratory settings. The **workload unit (WU)** will be used to calculate faculty workload, and will be gauged by equivalence to an instructional credit (workload units are synonymous with instructional units). As examples, a typical three-credit lecture class lasting for one 15-week semester counts as three workload units, and a typical one-credit, three-hour/week lab component of a class lasting for one 15-week semester counts as one workload unit. An average core workload is considered teaching 15 instructional credits per semester (equaling 30 credits for an academic year). Workload units may also be reassigned for non-instructional duties, for student contact hours in clinical and laboratory instruction, and for high total student enrollment with individual instructors.

Once a full core workload level is reached for an individual faculty, any additional instructional or alternative duties shall be considered as overload, and compensated in accordance with the overload provisions of this Faculty

Commented [DJ1]: I believe that the OFFICE should be noted, not the POSITION

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Tab stops: Not at 1.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Tab stops: Not at 1.75"

Commented [DBJ2]: Adjusted formatting and page numbers

Commented [DBJ3]: average instead of usual

Commented [DBJ4]: equaling to signify that the core workload is 30 credits per academic year

Workload Policy. If the workload of a faculty member is less than the stated amount for the position, that individual shall be assigned additional classes or appropriate alternative duties, on or off campus, to compensate for the core workload deficiency.

Within the first month of each semester, the office Office of the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs (VPASAVPAA) will review the instructional credits and other workload units of each faculty. The workload of each faculty must be approved by the VPASAVPAA. In cases where no agreement can be reached between the faculty and the VPASAVPAA, the faculty member may appeal to the Senate Executive Committee, which will make recommendations to the VPASAVPAA. Subject to additional comment and recommendations by the College President and the President's Council, the VPASAVPAA will make the final decision on workload disputes.

This policy sets forth only the guidelines for determining faculty workload. This document does not address individual job descriptions.

Procedures

1.0 Contract Definitions

"B" Contract – This is the basic contract for teaching faculty; and is for service during the ten-month academic year. Faculty with "B" contracts are entitled to regular state and federal holidays and student breaks in conformity with the adopted academic calendar. These faculty may accept supplemental appointments for services for periods of time not included in their "B" contract following college policies and guidelines.

"B+" Contract – This contract covers the ten-month period of a "B" contract, plus a specified number of additional days of work. This work may be allocated as additional, non-instructional days, as additional courses of teaching, or as a combination of the two. The additional work will be expressed as a number equivalent to the number of days of extra work required. The value of each "plus" day will by calculated by multiplying the base salary of the "B" contract by 0.5%. The daily value is then multiplied by the number of "plus" days to be worked. The projected dates of the work and a description of the work to be completed in the "plus days" must be specified in the individual contract and approved in advance by the hiring authority. If the additional days are instructional days, then no overload pay will be given for teaching the additional course(s). "Plus" days will not be granted for attendance of professional meetings, seminars, workshops, judging and similar activities outside of the academic calendar unless attendance is required or approved in advance by the administration. "B+" contracts are issued annually based on work expected or known to be done for one academic year, independent of any previous year's contract. If appropriate professional development funds are available, these may be used outside of the regular contract days, following standard approval guidelines.

"A" Contract – This contract covers the full calendar year. The expectation for a member of the Instructional Faculty on an "A" contract is 36 workload units. "A" contracts are normally reserved for personnel engaged in year-round programs designated as such by the president, or with teaching positions that include a significant amount of administrative duties within a department. "A" contract faculty and professional staff are obligated for assigned duties throughout the year except for official state holidays. "A" contract faculty may take annual leave when desired if it does not conflict with normally assigned or specially required duties of the unit. The employee's job description will specify all duties that occur outside of the academic year.

All "A," "B," and "B+" contracts are considered annual contracts for the purpose of benefits eligibility. Full-time faculty are eligible to participate in the retirement program on the effective overload provisions of this Faculty Workload Policy.

Within the first month of each semester, the office of the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs (VPASA) will review the instructional credits and other workload units of each faculty. The workload of each faculty must be approved by the VPASA. In cases where no agreement can be reached between the faculty and the VPASA, the faculty member may appeal to the Senate Executive Committee, which will make recommendations to the VPASA. Subject to additional comment and recommendations by the College President and the President's Council, the VPASA will make the final decision on workload disputes.

This policy sets forth only the guidelines for determining faculty workload. This document does not address individual job descriptions.

Commented [DJ5]:

2.0 Core Workload Components (Each faculty must meet all criteria.)

Guidelines and descriptions are provided in Section IV below to be used in determining workload units, contact hours, student enrollment criteria, etc., as used in this section.

A. "B" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position - 1.0 FTE

- a.1. Faculty will carry 14 to 16 workload units each semester or 270 student contact hours in a semester (based on 18 contact hours per week). If using student enrollment, each faculty member will have a minimum of 125 students enrolled per semester in the equivalent of three-credit classes.
- b-2. An annual faculty contract is 30 workload units or 540 student contact hours per academic year (two semesters). If using student enrollment, there will be a minimum of 250 students per academic year. (NOTE: Faculty may use one form of workload calculation one semester, and another the next, as long as they meet full workload equivalencies in aggregate for the year.)
- e-3. Each faculty is required to schedule and post a minimum of 5 office hours per week for student consultation and academic advising.
- d.4. Each faculty is expected to have as many as 20 student advisees at any given time as part of normal teaching duties.
- e.5. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is required.
- f.6. Instructional faculty are expected to spend a minimum of 35 hours per week on their assigned duties. At least 5 hours will be scheduled as on-campus office hours. The remainder will consist of instructional activities, institutional service, professional development, or other duties, depending on the needs of specific faculty, departments and programs. 40 hours per week shall be the primary basis for determining the workload of non-instructional faculty.

B. "B" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position, Contract of 0.5 FTE or greater but less than 1.0 FTE

a.1. Faculty carrying less than a full-time contract shall be assigned a core workload based on their proportional equivalent of a full-time contract.

Example 1: Contract of 0.5 FTE - Faculty will have a total of 15 workload units per academic year, or 15 workload units in one semester. 50% contact hour or 50% student enrollment calculations may also be used.

Example 2: Contract of 0.6 FTE - Faculty will have a total of 18 workload units per academic year. 60% contact hour or 60% student enrollment calculations may be used.

Example 3: Contract of 0.8 FTE - Faculty will have a total of 24 workload units per academic

Example 3: Contract of $0.8\,\mathrm{FTE}$ - Faculty will have a total of $24\,\mathrm{workload}$ units per academic year. 80% contact hour or 80% student enrollment calculations may be used.

- b.2. A minimum of 5 hours per week of scheduled and posted office hours are required.
- e.3. Student advising is expected in proportion to the percentage of a full-time contract.
- d.4. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is expected.
- e-5. Fractional full-time faculty must be on campus in a proportional equivalent to the hours required for full-time faculty, as determined by the fractional amount of their contract.

C. "B+" Contract

- a.1. Workload expectations during the "B" portion of the "B+" contract are the same as for "B" contract faculty.
- b-2. The days to be worked outside of the standard academic year (the "+""+" portion) and the duties to be performed during those days must be specified in writing and approved in advance by the hiring authority.
- e.3. In general, "plus" days will be given only for work relating directly to instruction and functioning of the college. "Plus" days will not be given for attendance at professional meetings, conferences, seminars, judging, or similar events unless attendance is required or approved in advance by the administration.

D. "A" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position - 1.0 FTE

- a-1. An annual "A" contract for instructional faculty requires 36 workload units, 675 total student contact hours, or a minimum student enrollment of 275 students (in the equivalent of 3-credit classes) per full calendar year. (NOTE: Faculty may use one form of workload calculation one semester, and another the next, as long as full workload equivalencies are met for the year.)
- b.2. Additional administrative, instructional, or departmental duties must be completed throughout the year as described in the position job description.
- e.3. Each faculty is required to schedule and post a minimum of 5 office hours per week for student consultation and academic advising.

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt
Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt
Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt
Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

- d.4. Each faculty is expected to have as many as 25 student advisees at any given time as part of normal teaching duties.
- e.5. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is required.
- £.6. Faculty must be on campus not less than 35 hours per week to perform their duties, unless assigned off-campus duties contributing to the total of 35 hours per week. 40 hours per week shall be the primary basis for determining the workload of non-instructional faculty.

E. Part-time Instructor (Letter of Appointment)

Part-time instructors may carry a maximum of 6 workload units per semester for instructional purposes, 19.5 hours per week for non-instructional purposes, or a combination of the two, as described below.

Calculation of Maximum Credit Hours and/or Clock Hours GBC Part-time Instructors or Part-time Employees May Work

Basic Rules:

- 1. The general rule for part-time employees is that they may work only 49% of full-time equivalency. If they exceed the 49%, then GBC must pay them benefits which are in excess of 20% of salary.
- 2. Part-time hourly employees may not work more than 79 hours per month or 19.5 hours per week.
- 3. Part-time instructors may not teach more than 6 credit hours for three consecutive months, except in special circumstances with prior approval of administration.
- 4. There are some circumstances where exceeding the 49% limit may be approved for periods of up to 60 or 90 days, but all exceptions to the 49% limit require prior administrative approval.

Use the table below to calculate an individual's percent of full-time employment. If the individual is both working as a Part-time instructor and as a part-time hourly employee, you must sum the percentage for each type of employment.

Part-tin	ne Instructor/Part-time Emplo	yee Calculation Grid	
FT% for l	Hourly	FT% for Cre	dit Hours
Weekly Clock Hrs Paid Work	Weekly Percent of Full-time	Credit Hours	Percent of Full-time*
1	2.5%	0.5	2.5%
2	5.0%	1	5.0%
3	7.5%	1.5	7.5%
4	10.0%	2	10.0%
5	12.5%	2.5	12.5%
6	15.0%	3	15.0%
7	17.5%	3.5	17.5%
8	20.0%	4	20.0%
9	22.5%	4.5	22.5%
10	25.0%	5	25.0%
11	27.5%	5.5	27.5%
12	30.0%	6	30.0%
13	32.5%	6.5	32.5%
14	35.0%	7	35.0%
15	37.5%	7.5	37.5%
16	40.0%	8	40.0%
17	42.5%	8.5	42.5%
18	45.0%	9	45.0%
19	47.5%	9.5	47.5%

Each credit is worth 7.0% rounded to appropriate amount.

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt

3.0 -Guidelines Forfor Determining Faculty Workload Equivalencies

Faculty workload determinations are based on faculty instructional duties ("A" below) and non-instructional assignments or reassignments ("B" below). Some functions are recognized only as overload activities and not part of the core workload ("C" below). Faculty incentives (Section 7.0) are not considered as part of the workload, but only as incentives outside of workload for completion of tasks that may benefit the college.

The definition of the workload unit was given in the preface. The basis for the workload assessments provided below is the assumed equivalency to the workload unit as based on the instructional credit. The guidelines for determining workload units for situations other than standard classroom lecture situations are given for several potential settings. It is recognized that all possible situations and activities may not be included. Faculty and the appropriate administrator should negotiate activities not mentioned.

A. Instructional Duties

The first consideration for calculating an individual's workload is which of three methods will be used; the choice is from credit-based workload units (section "1" below), in-class student contact hours (section "2" below), or by total student enrollment (section "3" below).

1. 1-Workload units based directly on instructional credits

a. Lecture Courses

For traditional lecture courses, workload units shall be assigned equal to the number of instructional credits being taught. It is assumed that the allotment of credits compared to work required is already incorporated into these numbers. This is the equivalency defined in the preface.

b. Development of New Courses

Faculty who develop new instructional courses shall be granted workload units equal to the number of credits to be awarded for the course when offered to students. The course development must be completed by the end of the semester in which the workload units are awarded. New course development may occur prior to its first instruction, or concurrently with instruction of the course the first time (in this latter case, the faculty member would receive workload units double that of the instructional credits of the course). Workload units for new course development may only be granted the first time the course is taught for GBC; subsequent teaching of the course by any instructor will not include course development workload units.

For additional reference see "Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines" attached to the back of the policy.

- New course development for any course or conversion of a previously developed course to the online or other format will be recognized in an individual's workload only with prior approval of the VPAA.
- ii. There is no provision to receive workload compensation for redevelopment for a course that has previously been developed or delivered, except for those classes approved to be converted to a distance format (there is no workload consideration for "revamping" courses). It is assumed that all instructors are continually updating the content and delivery of their courses on a routine basis as part of the assessment process.
- iii. Any new course that is developed will only be approved in workload consideration for one development, whether it be for live, online, or any other delivery. Courses should initially be developed with the intent that in the future they may be delivered either online or live, or in some combination of delivery methods.
- There are no workload considerations for the development of "Special Topics" types of classes.

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold, Underline, Font color: Auto

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 12 pt, After: Auto, Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Tab after: 1" + Indent at: 1"

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, After: 0 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Space Before: Auto, After: Auto, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

Commented [DJ6]: Moved this verbiage from the appendix

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space After: 12 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

c. Redevelopment of Existing Classes

Classes that have substantial changes in materials or equipment shall be granted additional workload units with prior approval of the VPAA.

e.d. Development of Upper Division General Education Seminars

Faculty who develop a new upper division general education seminar (specifically, INT 339, 349, 359 or 369) on a topic that has not been presented before shall receive workload units for the development of a new course, as described in section "b." above.

For additional reference see "Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines" attached at the back of the policy.

i. Workload considerations for the development of new INT seminars will be approved for only one class for each of the four seminars each academic year. All other sections that are offered should be previously developed seminars or must be developed without additional workload consideration. This is in consideration that many excellent seminars covering many topical areas have already been developed and that any of these topics could be considered for presentation more than once. The decision of which single class during a year may receive workload development consideration will come from the respective department administering the particular seminar.

d.e. Distance Education

Distance education includes interactive video (IAV), online, hybrid/IAV, hybrid, and telecourse modes of instruction, as described below. In order to teach through any mode of distance education, the instructor will have been trained in the use of the technology and the content area; and will provide for assessment to ensure the use of quality teaching methods.

- i. (1) Interactive Video Courses (IAV). IAV classes are those having 50% or more of the contact hours associated with the course delivered through the interactive video medium to one or more sites away from the site of delivery. These classes will be designated by the letter "V" in the second position of the section number. These shall have the same workload unit value as the number of credits associated with the single course number. Individual faculty are discouraged from teaching more than three IAV courses (9 credits) during any
- <u>ii.</u> (2) Online Courses. Online courses are those having 60% or more of the contact hours associated with the course delivered through WebCT, e-mail, the Internet, chat rooms, bulletin boards, or other synchronous or asynchronous computerized methods, These courses will be designated by the letter "I" in the first position of the section number.

Online classes shall have workload units given equal to the number of credits given for the class unless the class has more than 20 students enrolled. With 21 or more students in a class, the instructor will be given workload units 1.25 times the number of credits for that class, but only if the class is given a maximum enrollment cap of 30 or more. The determination for the workload multiplier for online classes will be based on enrollment in a class as of the day after the 50% refund drop date. If an online class has low enrollment, the instructor and VPASAVPAA will jointly determine if the class is to be taught as scheduled, taught as independent study, or cancelled.

Example 1: An instructor has three 3-credit online classes having respective enrollments of 30, 25, and 20. These represent nine instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

Class #1 (30 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU
Class #2 (25 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75
Class #3 (20 students): 3 credits = 3
Total: = 10.5 WU

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt, After: 0 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Commented [DJ7]: Moved verbiage from the appendix

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt
Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, After: 0 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2", Space Before: 6 pt

Workload for three classes (9 credits): 10.5 WU

Example 2: An instructor has five different online classes. Two are 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 18. One is a 2-credit class with 11 students, and two are 1-credit classes with respective enrollments of 14 and 38. These represent 10 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1 (24 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU

Class #2 (18 students): 3 credits = 3

Class #3 (11 students): 2 credits = 2

Class #4 (14 students): 1 credit = 1

Class #5: (28 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25

Total = 11 WU

Workload for five classes (10 credits): 11 WU
```

Example 3: An instructor has four different online classes. Two are 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 38. Two are 1-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 32. These represent 8 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1 (24 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU
Class #2 (28 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75
Class #3 (24 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25
Class #4 (22 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25
Total = 10 WU
Workload for four classes (8 credits): 10 WU
```

- iii. (3) Hybrid Courses. Hybrid classes incorporate at least two different modes of presentation of course material. These may include (but not necessarily be limited to) live lectures, IAV, and online modes. Unless there is 60% or more delivered online (and thus calculated as an online class), the workload units will equal the instructional credits.
- iv. (4) Telecourses. A telecourse is one whose delivery is by audiotape, videotape, CD, CD-ROM, or DVD typically without regular interaction between students and instructor or between a student and other students. A telecourse will have a section number with the letter "T" in the second place that indicates its status. A telecourse receives 0.05 workload units for each student enrolled, times the number of credits for the course.

Example: An instructor has two 3-credit telecourses having respective enrollments of 24 and 18. The same instructor also has one 2-credit telecourse with 11 students. These represent 8 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1: 24 students x 0.05 WU/student x 3 credits \rightarrow 3.6 WU Class #2: 18 students x 0.05 WU/student x 3 credits \rightarrow 2.7 WU Class #3: 11 students x 0.05 WU/student x 2 credits \rightarrow 1.2 WU Workload for three classes (8 credits): 7.5 WU
```

The assigned workload for these classes is 7.5 WU.

v. (5) Online and IAV Course Development and Adaptation.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 18 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

A. Online courses. Workload units may be awarded for course development or adaptation specifically to the online format. When adapting an existing course to be taught online for the first time within the institution, workload units equal to the instructional credits may be awarded. This may be awarded only once for any course within the institution for extra workload units, and the material must subsequently be made available for other GBC faculty to use to teach the same course online.

B. IAV courses. A number of workload units one-half the number of course instructional credits may be assigned for course adaptation to the IAV format. When adapting an existing course to be taught via IAV for the first time within the institution, the instructional credits may be multiplied by 1.5 to calculate workload units for that class. This may be awarded only once for any course within the institution for extra workload units, and the material must subsequently be made available for other GBC faculty to use to teach the same course via IAV. This will not include INT Seminars (339, 349, 359, 369) for which course development workload units are being awarded.

e.f. Theatre Performance Assignments

Three workload units will be awarded for supervision of one main stage production and oversight of one lab performance during a single semester by a designated theatre instructor.

f.g. Practica, Internships, Work Co-ops

These types of courses do not take place in a classroom or laboratory setting as a principal portion of the class. They are generally related in some way to practical experience in a work setting or to some other manner of independent work or production. The students will often work under the supervision of a supervisor not part of the college but may at times be working on independent projects supervised by a college faculty member. Faculty will generally not meet with students on more than a weekly to monthly basis because there is outside supervision.

If these types of courses have more than seven students enrolled in the same class, that class will be rated for workload units by the number of instructional credits. If there are seven or less students in any of these types of classes, workload will be rated by the number of students enrolled in the class (or combination of classes) and the number of credits being awarded. The number of combined students shall be multiplied by the number of course credits and divided by 15 to calculate the number of workload units awarded.

Example: An instructor has a 3-credit internship class with an enrollment of 9 students, a 6-credit practicum class with 3 students, and a 4-credit work co-op with 2 students. These represent 11 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

Class #1:(more than 7 students) \rightarrow 3.0 WU
Class #2:(less than 7 students) 3 students x 6 credits/15 \rightarrow 1.2 WU
Class #3:(less than 7 students) 2 students x 4 credits/15 \rightarrow 0.5 WU
Workload for these three classes (11 credits): 4.7 WU

The assigned workload for these classes is $4.7\ WU$.

g.h. Oversight of Student Teaching

For student teaching where students are enrolled in a 14-credit section, faculty will receive 1.0 workload unit for each student being evaluated. If the supervising faculty is required to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.5 WU will be awarded per student instead of 1.0 WU.

h. Oversight of Early Childhood Education Practica/Internships

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 2.25" + Tab after: 2.5" + Indent at: 2.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt, After: 0 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 2.25" + Tab after: 2.5" + Indent at: 2.5"

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt. After: 0 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 18 pt
Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

For practica/internships where students are enrolled in a 6-8 credit section, faculty will receive 0.5 WU for each student being evaluated. If the supervising faculty has to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.0 WU will be awarded per student instead of 0.5 WU.

Education Field Experience Courses

All field experience courses for education B.A. programs will be worth at least 1.0 WU unless the course has excessive placements (see scale below). The workload units will be regulated through the creation of new sections.

```
1-16 placements = 1 workload unit
17-28 placements = 2 workload units
29-40 placements = 3 workload units
41-52 placements = 4 workload units
53-64 placements = 5 workload units
65-76 placements = 6 workload units
77-88 placements = 7 workload units
```

j.k. Team Teaching

Faculty involved in team teaching shall divide the workload units in proportion to their assigned effort. The proportion shall be determined and agreed to by the faculty involved and the VPASAVPAA.

k.l. Teaching Concurrent Courses

When teaching two or more live courses concurrently, the workload will be assigned as the maximum number of credits given for any one of the concurrently taught sections, so long as the total number of students in all concurrently taught sections does not exceed 16. If total enrollment in concurrent course sections exceeds 16, faculty will receive workload credits equivalent to the credits of the one course with maximum credits, plus 0.05 workload unit for each student enrollment above 16, times the number of credits for the course(s).

4.m. Technical On-site Training (TOT)

These are courses taught at a facility that is not operated by GBC. TOT courses have workload units equal to the instructional units for classes with enrollments of up to 12 students. If total enrollment in TOT classes exceeds 12, faculty will receive workload credits equivalent to the credits of the one course plus 0.05 workload units for each student enrollment above 12, times the number of credits for the course.

2. 2. Contact Hours.

Clinical and Laboratory Settings

For laboratory and health science clinical courses which do not follow the standard lecture credit-hour model, workload units may be calculated using student contact hours. Contact hours represent that time spent directly teaching students in classroom, laboratory, or clinical settings, with the hours being counted as set forth in the official college course schedule. 18 contact hours will be rated as equaling 1 workload unit (i.e., 18hours/week for 15 weeks is 15 workload units).

Example 1: An instructor spends eight weeks teaching two 3-credit lecture classes, one lab that meets three hours per week (a one-credit lab); and supervises students in a clinical setting 12 hours per week. The same instructor finishes the last seven weeks of the semester teaching the same two 3-credit lecture classes, two 3-hour labs per week, and spends 4 hours per week in clinical supervision of students. The total instructional credits being taught is about 10; and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact Hours:

-First eight weeks-

Lectures: 2 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 8 weeks \rightarrow 48 hr Labs: 1 lab x 3 hr/class/week x 8 weeks \rightarrow 24 hr Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, Add space between paragraphs of the same style, Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.25" + Tab after: 1.5" + Indent at: 1.5"

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, After: 6 pt, Add space between paragraphs of the same style, Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.25" + Tab after: 1.5" + Indent at: 1.5"

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, Add space between paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt

Clinical: 12 hr/week x 8 weeks →96 hr

-Last seven weeks-

 Lectures:
 2 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 7 weeks \rightarrow 35 hr

 Labs:
 2 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 7 weeks \rightarrow 42 hr

 Clinical:
 4 hr/week x 7 weeks \rightarrow 28 hr

 Total Hours:
 273 hr

273 total hr/18 hr/WU = **15.2 WU** This represents 0.2 overload units.

Example 2: For a semester, an instructor has two 4-credit classes (3 hr lecture \pm 3 hr lab each) and two 3-credit lecture classes. The total credits being taught is 14_{3} and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

270 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15 WU This represents a full workload.

Example 3: For a semester, an instructor has three 4-credit classes (3 hr lecture \pm 3 hr lab each). The total credits being taught is $12_{\overline{z}}$ and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

 Lectures:
 3 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks \rightarrow 135 hr

 Labs:
 3 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks \rightarrow 135 hr

 Total Hours:
 270 hr

270 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15 WU This is a full workload.

Workload units for an individual during a single semester may be calculated using instructional credits, contact hours, or total student enrollment, but not by any combination of these options.

3. 3. Cumulative Student Enrollment.

Sum of Class Sizes

Within some sections of certain courses the enrollment of large numbers of student is reasonably predictable. If, based on past enrollment history, it can be reasonably projected that there will be high enrollment numbers for classes taught by a single faculty member, that faculty member may base workload on enrollment. If aggregate enrollment in all sections being taught by a single faculty during a single semester is 125 or greater (in the equivalent of 3-credit classes), then that enrollment may constitute a full workload. If total student enrollment in the equivalent of 3-credit classes is greater than 150 students, then the faculty will be entitled to overload payment. Extra workload units will be awarded at the rate of 0.025 WU per student times the number of credits for the class for every student past the count of 150.

Example 1: An instructor has three 3-credit classes with enrollments of 39, 46, and 41 students. This is 9 instructional credits and not a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student

Enrollment:

39 + 46 + 41 = 126 This is more than 125 total students and is a full load.

Example 2: An instructor has four 3-credit classes with enrollments of 38, 51, 43, and 28. This is 12 instruction credits and not a full load based on credits.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

38 + 51 + 43 + 28 = 160

Since this is more than 150 students, this is an overload.

160-150=10

10 students x 0.025 WU/credit x 3 credits = 0.75 WU of overload

Example 3: An instructor has five 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 28, 21, 33, 16, and 18 students. This represents 15 credits of instruction and is a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

28 + 21 + 33 + 16 + 18 = 116

This is less than 125, but it is a full workload based on credits.

Workload units for an individual during a single semester may be calculated using instructional credits, contact hours, or total student enrollment, but not by combination of these options.

B. Workload Units for Non-Instructional Assignments

The following workload units for assigned or reassigned non-instructional duties may be added into the faculty instructional workload to determine the total faculty workload. Workload units are given below for the listed assignments. If a faculty workload is calculated on contact hours, the workload units for each of the following will be considered equal to contact hours.

1. Department Chairs

Department Chairs of departments that are not within a larger division (that has a chair) will normally be assigned three workload units per semester for these duties. There is no credit assignment for departments that are within larger divisions.

2. Division Chairs (tentative)

Division Chairs shall be assigned 50% of a full workload and a B+10 contract for performing the administrative duties required of the position. 50% of the position will be dedicated to instruction.

3. Faculty Senate Chair

Faculty Senate Chair shall be assigned six workload units (or 14 hours per week for non-instructional faculty) each semester. There will also be a \$1000 stipend per semester for the academic year for performing this duty.

4. Program Supervisor

A Program Supervisor will typically oversee a Bachelor's degree program for a three (3) workload unit reassignment. However, with sufficient program duties and workload, certain Bachelor degree emphases, Associate's degrees, or stand-alone certificate programs may apply to be considered for workload reassignment. A Program Supervisor may be awarded workload unit reassignment based on an evaluation by the faculty member's supervising Dean if the extra work duties performed are above or in addition to a normal faculty workload. Workload reassignment for Program Supervisor will require documentation of the workload and approval by the Dean. Workload reassignment will be awarded proportionately with the premise that one day per week extra for performed duties is equivalent to a three (3) workload unit reassignment and/or equivalent plus days as approved by the supervising Dean. Workload reassignments shall be reviewed annually.

5. Lead Faculty

A Lead Faculty is a faculty member determined by the department and the Dean who is teaching within a degree program that requires a limited level of coordination and leadership for an area not predominantly overseen by a department chair or program supervisor. There is no workload reassignment for this role as the duties are essentially the same as for other faculty. This individual is the primary contact and coordinator for faculty within a program. Lead Faculty status may be reflected in the management role for annual evaluation.

6. Workload for Non-instructional Faculty

If a non-instructional faculty member is involved in duties not normally a part of the job

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt, After: 0 pt **Formatted:** Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt

description (e.g., elected as Faculty Senate Chair), then 7 hours per week is the equivalent of 3 workload units. That faculty member shall be given time reassigned from regular functions in this ratio to accommodate alternate duties. If non-instructional faculty are given instructional responsibilities as part of their job function by their supervisor, with time provided out of their regular work time, then there will be no additional compensation to perform these duties. If non-instructional faculty take on instructional responsibilities in addition to their regular job function, and these responsibilities are performed outside of their regular work time, they shall be compensated at the Part time faculty rate.

7. Recruitment

All faculty are expected to participate in student recruitment to some degree. If a faculty member anticipates participation in extensive recruiting tours or programs during a coming semester that is not already considered a part of faculty workload for other duties (e.g., Program Supervisor or Division Chair), then the instructor may submit a proposal of the recruitment activity to the \frac{VPASAVPAA}{VPASAVPAA}. As a general rule, one workload unit = (work hours/15), not including travel time. There must be prior approval by the \frac{VPASAVPAA}{VPASAVPAA} before recruitment can be used as workload reassignment.

D.C. Activities Recognized Only as Overload

Activities within this section may not be included within the core faculty workload. They may only be awarded as overload workload units.

1. Independent Study

An independent study class is one which is offered specifically for a very small number of students (about five or less) wherein the students are expected to principally work independently without meeting in the regularly scheduled time blocks. For calculation of workload units, add the total number of independent study students in all sections, divide by 15, and multiply by the number of course credits. Example: An instructor has one and three students enrolled respectively in two different 3-credit independent study classes (this is in addition to having a full workload of lecture and online classes). $4/15 \times 3 = 0.8 \text{ WU}$.

2. Self-Paced Courses

A self-paced course is one offered for students to work independently and at their own pace without attendance in regular scheduled time blocks. Self-paced classes may be delivered through a variety of formats for any number of students with minimal contact with the instructor. For calculation of workload units, add the total number of self-paced students in all sections being taught by a faculty member, divide by 15, and multiply by the number of course credits. Examples: (1) An instructor has four and eight students enrolled respectively in two different 3-credit self-paced classes. Calculation: $12/15 \times 3 = 2.4 \text{ WU}$. (2) An instructor has nine students enrolled in one 1-credit self-paced class. Calculation: $9/15 \times 1 = 0.6 \text{ WU}$.

3. Academic Advisement

Every instructor is expected to advise up to 20 different students every semester. If an instructor advises more than 20 students during a semester, and if that advisement is not already considered as a part of workload for other duties (e.g., Program Supervisor or Division Chair), then the instructor shall hand in a record of student advisement to the VPASAVPAA and shall be given overload at the same rate per student as provided for in section IV, A, 3 (Student Enrollment, Class Size overload): students x 0.025 x credits = overload WU

4. Contract Training

Faculty will be eligible for differential pay when teaching contract training courses under the following situations:

- a. The course is taught at an underground mine site, surface mine, or industrial site.
- The course is a contract course, not a regularly scheduled course taught to mine or industrial workers at the Faculty member's home GBC campus.

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

- c. The course requires travel to the training site other than the normal travel to the Faculty member's regular GBC campus.
- d. The differential pay will be paid for by the outside contractor's training fee.

Compensation for these activities is given in the section below.

Faculty providing off-campus contract training will be compensated as follows:

- For teaching a training course at an underground mine the differential rate will be twenty dollars (\$20.00) per student per credit.
- b. For teaching a training a course at a surface mine or other industrial sit the differential rate will be fifteen dollars (\$15.00) per student per credit.

This rate will not affect either the faculty member's overload status or normal workload.

4.0 Overload Compensation

For any semester in which a faculty member is carrying a workload above the amount stated in this document as a core workload, that faculty member shall be compensated above the amount of the regular salary. During the semester in which the faculty member is working in an overload situation, the individual faculty member and the \frac{VPASAVPAA}{VPAA} shall jointly decide if extra pay for the overload credits or a reduced credit load the next semester (from fall to spring semesters only) is appropriate. Workload credits from one academic year may not be carried over to the next academic year. Core workload arrangements must be approved by the \frac{VPASAVPAA}{VPAA} before overload agreements can be made. Workload units – rounded to the nearest tenth - above the core workload shall be considered overload. The compensation rate for overload pay will be the number of overload workload units times the highest Part time faculty per-credit pay rate.

4.1 Overload Limit

4.1 Overload Limit

The maximum overload any GBC faculty member may have in any semester is 9 workload units (WU). All overload for any semester must be approved in advance by the <u>VPASAVPAA</u>. In determining the maximum overload for one semester, certain types of overload may be excluded in determining if a faculty member has met the maximum overload of 9 WU. These exclusions include the following:

- 2.A. Exclude up to 3 WU of non-instructional, reassigned duties.
- 3-B. Exclude any classes which are not taught 100% within the published regular 15-week semester.
- 4.C. If online classes are being taught and workload is received for classes with enrollment of any course split into more than one section, up to 6 WU may be excluded from the maximum allowed for overload.
- 5-D.Do not include the .25 WU/credit adjustment for certain online classes of large size (workload policy, Chapter 5, Section 3).
- 6.E. Exclude independent study WU.
- 7.F. Any WU above 9 after the above listed considerations must have the approval of the faculty member's supervisor in advance.

5.0 5.0 Underload

Any faculty carrying less than the stated number of workload units for their position in any given semester will have duties assigned to them by the VPASAVPAA from the following options:

- 1-A. Be given a larger credit load the next semester (may be carried over only from fall to spring semesters; may not be carried over to the next academic year).
- 2.B. Be given a course previously scheduled to be taught by a Part-time instructor.
- 3.C. Schedule a course or courses to be offered in the late semester schedule.
- 4.D.Offer one or more short courses targeted for specific groups.

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Tab after: 0.5" + Indent at: 0.5"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: 6 pt, After: 0 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

5-E. Be assigned duties by appropriate administrators that relate to the faculty member's function to the institution. These duties should be equal in time and effort to that of the number of workload units the faculty member is short.

6.0 -Exceptions

Exceptions to the workload policy will only be allowed if exceptional circumstances force deviations from this policy. All exceptions to the normal implementation of the workload policy as set forth above must be approved by the VPASAVPAA. Exceptions will be granted only on a semester-by-semester basis and generally only for one semester.

7.0 Faculty Incentive Stipends

All activities listed below must be approved in advance by the VPASAVPAA. Performance of these activities and functions must have a demonstrable benefit to GBC. These are not to be counted as part of a faculty core workload or overload unless agreed to in advance by the VPASAVPAA.

- H.A. Leadership Positions in Professional and College Associations. The faculty members may receive a stipend for taking on a leadership position in a professional or college association. These must be elected offices within widely recognized organizations, and have titles such as President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, or Program Director. Not more than one leadership position will be recognized for any single academic year. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be clearly reflected in the performance of related duties. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASAVPAA in consultation with the involved faculty.
- 2-B. Principal Investigator (or the equivalent) for a Grant Proposal. Unless an instructor is paid through the grant, a faculty member may receive a stipend for participating in writing a grant and performing functions required of a grant. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be reflected in all phases of the grant and related activities. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASAVPAA in consultation with the involved faculty.
- 3.C. Authorship of Professional Articles. Having a peer-reviewed professional article published regionally, nationally, or internationally may result in the faculty member receiving a stipend. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be clearly reflected in the publication together with the faculty's name. The impending publication of professional articles must be reported to the \(\frac{VPASAVPAA}{VPAA}\) prior to publication. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the \(\frac{VPASAVPAA}{VPASAVPAA}\) in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of publication.
- 4.D.Authorship of Book or Monograph. If a faculty has a book or monograph published after the manuscript's acceptance by a standard commercial or academic publishing company, a stipend may be awarded to the faculty only if the publication is not to generate royalties for the author. This is providing that GBC's name appears in the publication in association with the author's name. The impending publication of books must be reported to the VPASAVPAA prior to publication. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1500 may be paid as determined by the VPASAVPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of publication.
- 5-E. Shows, Performances, and Competitive Exhibitions. A stipend may be awarded for planning, preparing, and executing a show, performance, or exhibition if these are not associated with classes being taught or other normal duties associated with the faculty job. This stipend will be considered only if the faculty member is receiving no other compensation for the activity. These activities must be approved in advance by the VPAA, followed by clear documentation of completion. The show, performance, or exhibition must be discussed with and approved by the VPASAVPAA before the beginning of the semester of its occurrence. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASAVPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of completion.
- 6-F. Hosting a Seminar or Conference. These activities may bring a stipend payment to faculty if the seminars or conferences are deemed as positively affecting the standing and image of the College. The anticipated work hours involved in planning, preparing, and executing the seminar or conference will be documented and delivered to the VPASAVPAA in advance for approval. GBC's name must appear prominently in all aspects of the seminar or conference. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1500 may be paid as determined by the VPASAVPAA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of completion.

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

G. Other

Other activities having a clear benefit to the college, but not specifically listed above, may be considered for stipends on a case-by-case basis. Performance of these activities and functions must have a demonstrable benefit to GBC. These will not be counted as part of a faculty core workload or overload unless agreed to in advance by the VPASA VPAA. All "Other" activities must be approved in advance by the <u>VPASA</u><u>VPAA</u>.

Formatted: Space Before: 6 pt, After: Auto, Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Tab after: 0.5" + Indent at: 0.5"

President's Council Approved: April 26, 2005, April 28, 2009, May 8, 2012, February 25, 2014, and June 14, 2016 Approved by Faculty Senate: May 13, 2016
Contact the assistant to the president for any questions, corrections, or additions.

APPENDIX Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines and Workload August 7, 2007

The following clarifications and guidelines are for implementation beginning with the fall semester, 2007. These are principally restatements and clarifications of what already exists in the current workload policy.

- 1. New course development for any course or conversion of a previously developed course to the online or other format will be recognized in an individual's workload only with prior approval of the VPASA.
 - 2. There is no provision to receive workload compensation for redevelopment for a course that has previously been developed or delivered, except for those classes approved to be converted to a distance format (there is no workload consideration for "revamping" courses). It is assumed that all instructors are continually updating the content and delivery of their courses on a routine basis as part of the assessment process.
- 3. Beginning in the fall of 2007, any new course that is developed will only be approved in workload consideration for one development, whether it be for live, online, or any other delivery. Courses should initially be developed with the intent that in the future they may be delivered either online or live, or in some combination of delivery methods. Non-online courses that existed before the fall of 2007 and are considered for conversion to the online format will be given workload consideration for redevelopment with prior approval of the VPASA.
- 4. Beginning in the fall of 2007, workload considerations for the development of new INT Seminars (INT 339, 349, 359, 369) will be approved for only one class for each of the four seminars each academic year. All other sections that are offered should be previously developed seminars, or must be developed without additional workload consideration. This is in consideration that many excellent seminars covering many topical areas have already been developed, and that any of these topics could be considered for presentation more than once. The decision of which single class during a year may receive workload development consideration will come from the respective department administering the particular seminar.
 - There are no workload considerations for the development of "Special Topics"

 types of classes.

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Space Before: Auto, After: Auto, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space After: 12 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Tab after: 2" + Indent at: 2"



POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: FACULTY WORKLOAD POLICY

Policy No.: 5.21

Department: Academic Affairs

Contact: Vice-President for Academic and Student Affairs

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Policy	1
Procedures	2
1.0 Contract Definitions	2
2.0 Core Workload Components	3
3.0 Guidelines for Determining Faculty Workload Equivalencies	
4.0 Overload Compensation	
4.1 Overload Limit	12
5.0 Underload	12
6.0 Exceptions	12
7.0 Faculty Incentive Stipends	12
APPENDIX: Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines and Workload	14

Policy

The guidelines provided in the Great Basin College Faculty Workload Policy are based in policy and enrollment-based funding formulas of the NSHE Board of Regents and the Nevada State Legislature. As derived from these sources, the major portion of faculty workload should relate directly to courses being taught for credit, with a core teaching workload of 14 to 16 credits per semester, 30 credits for an academic year, and in consideration of expected students-per-class ratios given in the funding formulas. The instructional credit hour is the traditional basis for determining the faculty work effort. However, it is also recognized that some workload credit may be granted for alternative duties and assignments.

The basic guidelines for assessing faculty workload, based on instruction and reassigned duties, are outlined within this document. For the purposes of this document, the standard for workload calculation is the **instructional credit** corresponding to 15 classroom hours of lecture time or 45 hours of contact time in clinical and laboratory settings. The **workload unit (WU)** will be used to calculate faculty workload, and will be gauged by equivalence to an instructional credit (workload units are synonymous with instructional units). As examples, a typical three-credit lecture class lasting for one 15-week semester counts as three workload units, and a typical one-credit, three-hour/week lab component of a class lasting for one 15-week semester counts as one workload unit. Since a core workload is considered teaching 14 to 16 instructional credits per semester (and 30 credits for an academic year), then a core workload is considered to be 14 to 16 workload units per semester (and 30 units for the academic year). Workload units may also be reassigned for non-instructional duties, for student contact hours in clinical and laboratory instruction, and for high total student enrollment with individual instructors.

Once a full core workload level is reached for an individual faculty, any additional instructional or alternative duties shall be considered as overload, and compensated in accordance with the overload provisions of this Faculty Workload Policy. If the workload of a faculty member is less than the stated amount for the position, that individual shall be assigned additional classes or appropriate alternative duties, on or off campus, to compensate for the core workload deficiency.

Within the first month of each semester, the office of the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs (VPASA) will review the instructional credits and other workload units of each faculty. The workload of each faculty must be approved by the VPASA. In cases where no agreement can be reached between the faculty and the VPASA, the faculty member may appeal to the Senate Executive Committee, which will make recommendations to the VPASA. Subject to additional comment and recommendations by the College President and the President's Council, the VPASA will make the final decision on workload disputes.

This policy sets forth only the guidelines for determining faculty workload. This document does not address individual job descriptions.

Procedures

1.0 Contract Definitions

"B" Contract – This is the basic contract for teaching faculty, and is for service during the ten-month academic year. Faculty with "B" contracts are entitled to regular state and federal holidays and student breaks in conformity with the adopted academic calendar. These faculty may accept supplemental appointments for services for periods of time not included in their "B" contract following college policies and guidelines.

"B+" Contract – This contract covers the ten-month period of a "B" contract, plus a specified number of additional days of work. This work may be allocated as additional, non-instructional days, as additional courses of teaching, or as a combination of the two. The additional work will be expressed as a number equivalent to the number of days of extra work required. The value of each "plus" day will by calculated by multiplying the base salary of the "B" contract by 0.5%. The daily value is then multiplied by the number of "plus" days to be worked. The projected dates of the work and a description of the work to be completed in the "plus days" must be specified in the individual contract and approved in advance by the hiring authority. If the additional days are instructional days, then no overload pay will be given for teaching the additional course(s). "Plus" days will not be granted for attendance of professional meetings, seminars, workshops, judging and similar activities outside of the academic calendar unless attendance is required or approved in advance by the administration. "B+" contracts are issued annually based on work expected or known to be done for one academic year, independent of any previous year's contract. If appropriate professional development funds are available, these may be used outside of the regular contract days, following standard approval guidelines.

"A" Contract – This contract covers the full calendar year. The expectation for a member of the Instructional Faculty on an "A" contract is 36 workload units. "A" contracts are normally reserved for personnel engaged in year-round programs designated as such by the president, or with teaching positions that include a significant amount of administrative duties within a department. "A" contract faculty and professional staff are obligated for assigned duties throughout the year except for official state holidays. "A" contract faculty may take annual leave when desired if it does not conflict with normally assigned or specially required duties of the unit. The employee's job description will specify all duties that occur outside of the academic year.

All "A," "B," and "B+" contracts are considered annual contracts for the purpose of benefits eligibility. Full-time faculty are eligible to participate in the retirement program on the effective overload provisions of this Faculty Workload Policy. If the workload of a faculty member is less than the stated amount for the position, that individual shall be assigned additional classes or appropriate alternative duties, on or off campus, to compensate for the core workload deficiency.

Within the first month of each semester, the office of the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs (VPASA) will review the instructional credits and other workload units of each faculty. The workload of each faculty must be approved by the VPASA. In cases where no agreement can be reached between the faculty and the VPASA, the faculty member may appeal to the Senate Executive Committee, which will make recommendations to the VPASA. Subject to additional comment and recommendations by the College President and the President's Council, the VPASA will make the final decision on workload disputes.

This policy sets forth only the guidelines for determining faculty workload. This document does not address individual job descriptions.

2.0 Core Workload Components (Each faculty must meet all criteria.)

Guidelines and descriptions are provided in Section IV below to be used in determining workload units, contact hours, student enrollment criteria, etc., as used in this section.

A. "B" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position - 1.0 FTE

- a. Faculty will carry 14 to 16 workload units each semester or 270 student contact hours in a semester (based on 18 contact hours per week). If using student enrollment, each faculty member will have a minimum of 125 students enrolled per semester in the equivalent of three-credit classes.
- b. An annual faculty contract is 30 workload units or 540 student contact hours per academic year (two semesters). If using student enrollment, there will be a minimum of 250 students per academic year. (NOTE: Faculty may use one form of workload calculation one semester, and another the next, as long as they meet full workload equivalencies in aggregate for the year.)
- c. Each faculty is required to schedule and post a minimum of 5 office hours per week for student consultation and academic advising.
- d. Each faculty is expected to have as many as 20 student advisees at any given time as part of normal teaching duties.
- e. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is required.
- f. Instructional faculty are expected to spend a minimum of 35 hours per week on their assigned duties. At least 5 hours will be scheduled as on-campus office hours. The remainder will consist of instructional activities, institutional service, professional development, or other duties, depending on the needs of specific faculty, departments and programs. 40 hours per week shall be the primary basis for determining the workload of non-instructional faculty.

B. "B" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position, Contract of 0.5 FTE or greater but less than 1.0 FTE

- a. Faculty carrying less than a full-time contract shall be assigned a core workload based on their proportional equivalent of a full-time contract.
 - Example 1: Contract of 0.5 FTE Faculty will have a total of 15 workload units per academic year, or 15 workload units in one semester. 50% contact hour or 50% student enrollment calculations may also be used.
 - Example 2: Contract of 0.6 FTE Faculty will have a total of 18 workload units per academic year. 60% contact hour or 60% student enrollment calculations may be used.
 - Example 3: Contract of 0.8 FTE Faculty will have a total of 24 workload units per academic year. 80% contact hour or 80% student enrollment calculations may be used.
- b. A minimum of 5 hours per week of scheduled and posted office hours are required.
- c. Student advising is expected in proportion to the percentage of a full-time contract.
- d. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is expected.
- e. Fractional full-time faculty must be on campus in a proportional equivalent to the hours required for full-time faculty, as determined by the fractional amount of their contract.

C. "B+" Contract

- a. Workload expectations during the "B" portion of the "B+" contract are the same as for "B" contract faculty.
- b. The days to be worked outside of the standard academic year (the "+" portion) and the duties to be performed during those days must be specified in writing and approved in advance by the hiring authority.
- c. In general, "plus" days will be given only for work relating directly to instruction and functioning of the college. "Plus" days will not be given for attendance at professional meetings, conferences, seminars, judging, or similar events unless attendance is required or approved in advance by the administration.

D. "A" Contract, Full-time Faculty Position - 1.0 FTE

- a. An annual "A" contract for instructional faculty requires 36 workload units, 675 total student contact hours, or a minimum student enrollment of 275 students (in the equivalent of 3-credit classes) per full calendar year. (NOTE: Faculty may use one form of workload calculation one semester, and another the next, as long as full workload equivalencies are met for the year.)
- b. Additional administrative, instructional, or departmental duties must be completed throughout the year as described in the position job description.
- c. Each faculty is required to schedule and post a minimum of 5 office hours per week for student consultation and academic advising.
- d. Each faculty is expected to have as many as 25 student advisees at any given time as part of normal teaching duties.
- e. Availability for Faculty Senate committee assignments is required.

f. Faculty must be on campus not less than 35 hours per week to perform their duties, unless assigned off-campus duties contributing to the total of 35 hours per week. 40 hours per week shall be the primary basis for determining the workload of non-instructional faculty.

E. Part-time Instructor (Letter of Appointment)

Part-time instructors may carry a maximum of 10 workload units per semester for instructional purposes, 19.5 hours per week for non-instructional purposes, or a combination of the two, as described below.

Calculation of Maximum Credit Hours and/or Clock Hours GBC Part-time Instructors or Part-time Employees May Work

Basic Rules:

- 1. The general rule for part-time employees is that they may work only 49% of full-time equivalency. If they exceed the 49%, then GBC must pay them benefits which are in excess of 20% of salary.
- 2. Part-time hourly employees may not work more than 79 hours per month or 19.5 hours per week.
- 3. Part-time instructors may not teach more than 6 credit hours for three consecutive months, except in special circumstances with prior approval of administration.
- 4. There are some circumstances where exceeding the 49% limit may be approved for periods of up to 60 or 90 days, but all exceptions to the 49% limit require prior administrative approval.

Use the table below to calculate an individual's percent of full-time employment. If the individual is both working as a Part-time instructor and as a part-time hourly employee, you must sum the percentage for each type of employment.

Part-time Instructor/Part-time Employee Calculation Grid			
FT% for l	FT% for Hourly		dit Hours
Weekly Clock Hrs Paid Work	Weekly Percent of Full-time	Credit Hours	Percent of Full-time*
1	2.5%	0.5	2.5%
2	5.0%	1	5.0%
3	7.5%	1.5	7.5%
4	10.0%	2	10.0%
5	12.5%	2.5	12.5%
6	15.0%	3	15.0%
7	17.5%	3.5	17.5%
8	20.0%	4	20.0%
9	22.5%	4.5	22.5%
10	25.0%	5	25.0%
11	27.5%	5.5	27.5%
12	30.0%	6	30.0%
13	32.5%	6.5	32.5%
14	35.0%	7	35.0%
15	37.5%	7.5	37.5%
16	40.0%	8	40.0%
17	42.5%	8.5	42.5%
18	45.0%	9	45.0%
19	47.5%	9.5	47.5%

Each credit is worth 7.0% rounded to appropriate amount.

3.0 Guidelines For Determining Faculty Workload Equivalencies

Faculty workload determinations are based on faculty instructional duties ("A" below) and non-instructional assignments or reassignments ("B" below). Some functions are recognized only as overload activities and not part of the core workload ("C" below). Faculty incentives (Section VIII) are not considered as part of the workload, but only as incentives outside of workload for completion of tasks that may benefit the college.

The definition of the workload unit was given in the preface. The basis for the workload assessments provided below is the assumed equivalency to the workload unit as based on the instructional credit. The guidelines for determining workload units for situations other than standard classroom lecture situations are given for several potential settings. It is recognized that all possible situations and activities may not be included. Faculty and the appropriate administrator should negotiate activities not mentioned.

A. Instructional Duties

The first consideration for calculating an individual's workload is which of three methods will be used; the choice is from credit-based workload units (section "1" below), in-class student contact hours (section "2" below), or by total student enrollment (section "3" below).

1. Workload units based directly on instructional credits

a. Lecture Courses

For traditional lecture courses, workload units shall be assigned equal to the number of instructional credits being taught. It is assumed that the allotment of credits compared to work required is already incorporated into these numbers. This is the equivalency defined in the preface.

b. Development of New Courses

Faculty who develop new instructional courses shall be granted workload units equal to the number of credits to be awarded for the course when offered to students. The course development must be completed by the end of the semester in which the workload units are awarded. New course development may occur prior to its first instruction, or concurrently with instruction of the course the first time (in this latter case, the faculty member would receive workload units double that of the instructional credits of the course). Workload units for new course development may only be granted the first time the course is taught for GBC; subsequent teaching of the course by any instructor will not include course development workload units.

For additional reference see "Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines" attached to the back of the policy.

c. Development of Upper Division General Education Seminars

Faculty who develop a new upper division general education seminar (specifically, INT 339, 349, 359 or 369) on a topic that has not been presented before shall receive workload units for the development of a new course, as described in section "b." above.

For additional reference see "Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines" attached at the back of the policy.

d. Distance Education

Distance education includes interactive video (IAV), online, hybrid/IAV, hybrid, and telecourse modes of instruction, as described below. In order to teach through any mode of distance education, the instructor will have been trained in the use of the technology and the content area, and will provide for assessment to ensure the use of quality teaching methods.

(1) Interactive Video Courses (IAV). IAV classes are those having 50% or more of the contact hours associated with the course delivered through the interactive video medium to one or more sites away from the site of delivery. These classes will be designated by the letter "V" in the second position of the section number. These shall have the same

workload unit value as the number of credits associated with the single course number. Individual faculty are discouraged from teaching more than three IAV courses (9 credits) during any semester.

(2) Online Courses. Online courses are those having 60% or more of the contact hours associated with the course delivered through WebCT, e-mail, the Internet, chat rooms, bulletin boards, or other synchronous or asynchronous computerized methods. These courses will be designated by the letter "I" in the first position of the section number.

Online classes shall have workload units given equal to the number of credits given for the class unless the class has more than 20 students enrolled. With 21 or more students in a class, the instructor will be given workload units 1.25 times the number of credits for that class, but only if the class is given a maximum enrollment cap of 30 or more. The determination for the workload multiplier for online classes will be based on enrollment in a class as of the day after the 50% refund drop date. If an online class has low enrollment, the instructor and VPASA will jointly determine if the class is to be taught as scheduled, taught as independent study, or cancelled.

Example 1: An instructor has three 3-credit online classes having respective enrollments of 30, 25, and 20. These represent nine instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1 (30 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU

Class #2 (25 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75

Class #3 (20 students): 3 credits = 3

Total: = 10.5 WU

Workload for three classes (9 credits): 10.5 WU
```

Example 2: An instructor has five different online classes. Two are 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 18. One is a 2-credit class with 11 students, and two are 1-credit classes with respective enrollments of 14 and 38. These represent 10 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1 (24 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU

Class #2 (18 students): 3 credits = 3

Class #3 (11 students): 2 credits = 2

Class #4 (14 students): 1 credit = 1

Class #5: (28 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25

Total = 11 WU

Workload for five classes (10 credits): 11 WU
```

Example 3: An instructor has four different online classes. Two are 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 38. Two are 1-credit classes with respective enrollments of 24 and 32. These represent 8 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

```
Class #1 (24 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75 WU

Class #2 (28 students): 3 credits x 1.25 = 3.75

Class #3 (24 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25

Class #4 (22 students): 1 credit x 1.25 = 1.25

Total = 10 WU

Workload for four classes (8 credits): 10 WU
```

(3) Hybrid Courses. Hybrid classes incorporate at least two different modes of presentation of course material. These may include (but not necessarily be limited to) live

lectures, IAV, and online modes. Unless there is 60% or more delivered online (and thus calculated as an online class), the workload units will equal the instructional credits.

(4) Telecourses. A telecourse is one whose delivery is by audiotape, videotape, CD, CD-ROM, or DVD – typically without regular interaction between students and instructor or between a student and other students. A telecourse will have a section number with the letter "T" in the second place that indicates its status. A telecourse receives 0.05 workload units for each student enrolled, times the number of credits for the course.

Example: An instructor has two 3-credit telecourses having respective enrollments of 24 and 18. The same instructor also has one 2-credit telecourse with 11 students. These represent 8 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

Class #1: 24 students x 0.05 WU/student x 3 credits \rightarrow 3.6 WU Class #2: 18 students x 0.05 WU/student x 3 credits \rightarrow 2.7 WU Class #3: 11 students x 0.05 WU/student x 2 credits \rightarrow 1.2 WU **Workload** for three classes (8 credits): **7.5 WU**

The assigned workload for these classes is 7.5 WU.

(5) Online and IAV Course Development and Adaptation.

Online courses. Workload units may be awarded for course development or adaptation specifically to the online format. When adapting an existing course to be taught online for the first time within the institution, workload units equal to the instructional credits may be awarded. This may be awarded only once for any course within the institution for extra workload units, and the material must subsequently be made available for other GBC faculty to use to teach the same course online.

IAV courses. A number of workload units one-half the number of course instructional credits may be assigned for course adaptation to the IAV format. When adapting an existing course to be taught via IAV for the first time within the institution, the instructional credits may be multiplied by 1.5 to calculate workload units for that class. This may be awarded only once for any course within the institution for extra workload units, and the material must subsequently be made available for other GBC faculty to use to teach the same course via IAV. This will not include INT Seminars (339, 349, 359, 369) for which course development workload units are being awarded.

e. Theatre Performance Assignments

Three workload units will be awarded for supervision of one main stage production and oversight of one lab performance during a single semester by a designated theatre instructor.

f. Practica, Internships, Work Co-ops

These types of courses do not take place in a classroom or laboratory setting as a principal portion of the class. They are generally related in some way to practical experience in a work setting or to some other manner of independent work or production. The students will often work under the supervision of a supervisor not part of the college, but may at times be working on independent projects supervised by a college faculty member. Faculty will generally not meet with students on more than a weekly to monthly basis because there is outside supervision.

If these types of courses have more than seven students enrolled in the same class, that class will be rated for workload units by the number of instructional credits. If there are seven or less students in any of these types of classes, workload will be rated by the number of students enrolled in the class (or combination of classes) and the number of credits being awarded. The number of combined students shall be multiplied by the number of course credits and divided by 15 to calculate the number of workload units awarded.

Example: An instructor has a 3-credit internship class with an enrollment of 9 students, a 6-credit practicum class with 3 students, and a 4-credit work co-op with 2 students. These represent 11 instructional credits.

Workload Calculation:

Class #1:(more than 7 students) \rightarrow 3.0 WU
Class #2:(less than 7 students) 3 students x 6 credits/15 \rightarrow 1.2 WU
Class #3:(less than 7 students) 2 students x 4 credits/15 \rightarrow 0.5 WU
Workload for these three classes (11 credits): 4.7 WU

The assigned workload for these classes is 4.7 WU.

g. Oversight of Student Teaching

For student teaching where students are enrolled in a 14-credit section, faculty will receive 1.0 workload unit for each student being evaluated. If the supervising faculty is required to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.5 WU will be awarded per student instead of 1.0 WU.

h. Oversight of Early Childhood Education Practica/Internships

For practica/internships where students are enrolled in a 6-8 credit section, faculty will receive 0.5 WU for each student being evaluated. If the supervising faculty has to travel 50 miles or more each way, 1.0 WU will be awarded per student instead of 0.5 WU.

i. Education Field Experience Courses

All field experience courses for education B.A. programs will be worth at least 1.0 WU unless the course has excessive placements (see scale below). The workload units will be regulated through the creation of new sections.

1-16 placements = 1 workload unit

17-28 placements = 2 workload units

29-40 placements = 3 workload units

41-52 placements = 4 workload units

53-64 placements = 5 workload units

65-76 placements = 6 workload units

77-88 placements = 7 workload units

j. Team Teaching

Faculty involved in team teaching shall divide the workload units in proportion to their assigned effort. The proportion shall be determined and agreed to by the faculty involved and the VPASA.

k. Teaching Concurrent Courses

When teaching two or more live courses concurrently, the workload will be assigned as the maximum number of credits given for any one of the concurrently taught sections, so long as the total number of students in all concurrently taught sections does not exceed 16. If total enrollment in concurrent course sections exceeds 16, faculty will receive workload credits equivalent to the credits of the one course with maximum credits, plus 0.05 workload unit for each student enrollment above 16, times the number of credits for the course(s).

1. Technical On-site Training (TOT)

These are courses taught at a facility that is not operated by GBC. TOT courses have workload units equal to the instructional units for classes with enrollments of up to 12 students. If total enrollment in TOT classes exceeds 12, faculty will receive workload credits equivalent to the credits of the one course plus 0.05 workload units for each student enrollment above 12, times the number of credits for the course.

2. Contact Hours.

Clinical and Laboratory Settings

For laboratory and health science clinical courses which do not follow the standard lecture credit-hour model, workload units may be calculated using student contact hours. Contact hours represent that time spent directly teaching students in classroom, laboratory, or clinical settings, with the hours being counted as set forth in the official college course schedule. 18 contact hours will be rated as equaling 1 workload unit (i.e., 18hours/week for 15 weeks is 15 workload units).

Example 1: An instructor spends eight weeks teaching two 3-credit lecture classes, one lab that meets three hours per week (a one-credit lab), and supervises students in a clinical setting 12 hours per week. The same instructor finishes the last seven weeks of the semester teaching the same two 3-credit lecture classes, two 3-hour labs per week, and spends 4 hours per week in clinical supervision of students. The total instructional credits being taught is about 10, and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact Hours:

-First eight weeks-

Lectures: 2 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 8 weeks \rightarrow 48 hr Labs: 1 lab x 3 hr/class/week x 8 weeks \rightarrow 24 hr Clinical: 12 hr/week x 8 weeks \rightarrow 96 hr

-Last seven weeks-

 Lectures:
 2 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 7 weeks \rightarrow 35 hr

 Labs:
 2 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 7 weeks \rightarrow 42 hr

 Clinical:
 4 hr/week x 7 weeks \rightarrow 28 hr

 Total Hours:
 273 hr

273 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15.2 WU This represents 0.2 overload units.

Example 2: For a semester, an instructor has two 4-credit classes (3 hr lecture + 3 hr lab each) and two 3-credit lecture classes. The total credits being taught is 14, and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

Lectures: 4 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks \rightarrow 180 hr Labs: 2 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks \rightarrow 90 hr **Total Hours:** 270 hr

270 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15 WU This represents a full workload.

Example 3: For a semester, an instructor has three 4-credit classes (3 hr lecture + 3 hr lab each). The total credits being taught is 12, and not a full teaching load.

Workload Calculation by Contact

Hours:

Lectures: 3 classes x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks \rightarrow 135 hr Labs: 3 labs x 3 hr/class/week x 15 weeks \rightarrow 135 hr Total Hours: 270 hr

270 total hr/18 hr/WU = 15 WU This is a full workload.

Workload units for an individual during a single semester may be calculated using instructional credits, contact hours, or total student enrollment, but not by any combination of these options.

3. Cumulative Student Enrollment.

Sum of Class Sizes

Within some sections of certain courses the enrollment of large numbers of student is reasonably predictable. If, based on past enrollment history, it can be reasonably projected that there will be high enrollment numbers for classes taught by a single faculty member, that faculty member may base workload on enrollment. If aggregate enrollment in all sections being taught by a single faculty during a single semester is 125 or greater (in the equivalent of 3-credit classes), then that enrollment may constitute a full workload. If total student enrollment in the equivalent of 3-credit classes is greater than 150 students, then the faculty will be entitled to overload payment. Extra workload units will be awarded at the rate of 0.025 WU per student times the number of credits for the class for every student past the count of 150.

Example 1: An instructor has three 3-credit classes with enrollments of 39, 46, and 41 students. This is 9 instructional credits and not a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

39 + 46 + 41 = 126

This is more than 125 total students and is a full load.

Example 2: An instructor has four 3-credit classes with enrollments of 38, 51, 43, and 28. This is 12 instruction credits and not a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

38 + 51 + 43 + 28 = 160

Since this is more than 150 students, this is an overload.

160-150=10

10 students x 0.025 WU/credit x 3 credits = 0.75 WU of overload

Example 3: An instructor has five 3-credit classes with respective enrollments of 28, 21, 33, 16, and 18 students. This represents 15 credits of instruction and is a full load based on credits.

Workload Calculation by Student Enrollment:

28 + 21 + 33 + 16 + 18 = 116

This is less than 125, but it is a full workload based on credits.

Workload units for an individual during a single semester may be calculated using instructional credits, contact hours, or total student enrollment, but not by combination of these options.

B. Workload Units for Non-Instructional Assignments

The following workload units for assigned or reassigned non-instructional duties may be added into the faculty instructional workload to determine the total faculty workload. Workload units are given below for the listed assignments. If a faculty workload is calculated on contact hours, the workload units for each of the following will be considered equal to contact hours.

1. Department Chairs

Department Chairs of departments that are not within a larger division (that has a chair) will normally be assigned three workload units per semester for these duties. There is no credit assignment for departments that are within larger divisions.

2. Division Chairs (tentative)

Division Chairs shall be assigned 50% of a full workload and a B+10 contract for performing the administrative duties required of the position. 50% of the position will be dedicated to instruction.

3. Faculty Senate Chair

Faculty Senate Chair shall be assigned six workload units (or 14 hours per week for non-instructional faculty) each semester. There will also be a \$1000 stipend per semester for the academic year for performing this duty.

4. Program Supervisor

A Program Supervisor will typically oversee a Bachelor's degree program for a three (3) workload unit reassignment. However, with sufficient program duties and workload, certain Bachelor degree emphases, Associate's degrees, or stand-alone certificate programs may apply to be considered for workload reassignment. A Program Supervisor may be awarded workload unit reassignment based on an evaluation by the faculty member's supervising Dean if the extra work duties performed are above or in addition to a normal faculty workload. Workload reassignment for Program Supervisor will require documentation of the workload and approval by the Dean. Workload reassignment will be awarded proportionately with the premise that one day per week extra for performed duties is equivalent to a three (3) workload unit reassignment and/or equivalent plus days as approved by the supervising Dean. Workload reassignments shall be reviewed annually.

5. Lead Faculty

A Lead Faculty is a faculty member determined by the department and the Dean who is teaching

within a degree program that requires a limited level of coordination and leadership for an area not predominantly overseen by a department chair or program supervisor. There is no workload reassignment for this role as the duties are essentially the same as for other faculty. This individual is the primary contact and coordinator for faculty within a program. Lead Faculty status may be reflected in the management role for annual evaluation.

6. Workload for Non-instructional Faculty

If a non-instructional faculty member is involved in duties not normally a part of the job description (e.g., elected as Faculty Senate Chair), then 7 hours per week is the equivalent of 3 workload units. That faculty member shall be given time reassigned from regular functions in this ratio to accommodate alternate duties. If non-instructional faculty are given instructional responsibilities as part of their job function by their supervisor, with time provided out of their regular work time, then there will be no additional compensation to perform these duties. If non-instructional faculty take on instructional responsibilities in addition to their regular job function, and these responsibilities are performed outside of their regular work time, they shall be compensated at the Part time faculty rate.

7. Recruitment

All faculty are expected to participate in student recruitment to some degree. If a faculty member anticipates participation in extensive recruiting tours or programs during a coming semester that is not already considered a part of faculty workload for other duties (e.g., Program Supervisor or Division Chair), then the instructor may submit a proposal of the recruitment activity to the VPASA. As a general rule, one workload unit = (work hours/15), not including travel time. There must be prior approval by the VPASA before recruitment can be used as workload reassignment.

C. Activities Recognized Only as Overload

Activities within this section may not be included within the core faculty workload. They may only be awarded as overload workload units.

1. Independent Study

An independent study class is one which is offered specifically for a very small number of students (about five or less) wherein the students are expected to principally work independently without meeting in the regularly scheduled time blocks. For calculation of workload units, add the total number of independent study students in all sections, divide by 15, and multiply by the number of course credits. Example: An instructor has one and three students enrolled respectively in two different 3-credit independent study classes (this is in addition to having a full workload of lecture and online classes). $4/15 \times 3 = 0.8 \text{ WU}$.

2. Self-Paced Courses

A self-paced course is one offered for students to work independently and at their own pace without attendance in regular scheduled time blocks. Self-paced classes may be delivered through a variety of formats for any number of students with minimal contact with the instructor. For calculation of workload units, add the total number of self-paced students in all sections being taught by a faculty member, divide by 15, and multiply by the number of course credits. Examples: (1) An instructor has four and eight students enrolled respectively in two different 3-credit self-paced classes. Calculation: $12/15 \times 3 = 2.4 \text{ WU}$. (2) An instructor has nine students enrolled in one 1-credit self-paced class. Calculation: $9/15 \times 1 = 0.6 \text{ WU}$.

3. Academic Advisement

Every instructor is expected to advise up to 20 different students every semester. If an instructor advises more than 20 students during a semester, and if that advisement is not already considered as a part of workload for other duties (e.g., Program Supervisor or Division Chair), then the instructor shall hand in a record of student advisement to the VPASA and shall be given overload at the same rate per student as provided for in section IV, A, 3 (Student Enrollment, Class Size overload): students x 0.025 x credits = overload WU

- 4. Faculty will be eligible for differential pay when teaching contract training courses under the following situations:
 - a. The course is taught at an underground mine site, surface mine, or industrial site.
 - b. The course is a contract course, not a regularly scheduled course taught to mine or industrial workers at the Faculty member's home GBC campus.
 - c. The course requires travel to the training site other than the normal travel to the Faculty member's regular GBC campus.
 - d. The differential pay will be paid for by the outside contractor's training fee.

Compensation for these activities is given in the section below.

Faculty providing off-campus contract training will be compensated as follows:

- a. For teaching a training course at an underground mine the differential rate will be twenty dollars (\$20.00) per student per credit.
- b. For teaching a training a course at a surface mine or other industrial sit the differential rate will be fifteen dollars (\$15.00) per student per credit.

This rate will not affect either the faculty member's overload status or normal workload.

4.0 Overload Compensation

For any semester in which a faculty member is carrying a workload above the amount stated in this document as a core workload, that faculty member shall be compensated above the amount of the regular salary. During the semester in which the faculty member is working in an overload situation, the individual faculty member and the VPASA shall jointly decide if extra pay for the overload credits or a reduced credit load the next semester (from fall to spring semesters only) is appropriate. Workload credits from one academic year may not be carried over to the next academic year. Core workload arrangements must be approved by the VPASA before overload agreements can be made. Workload units – rounded to the nearest tenth - above the core workload shall be considered overload. The compensation rate for overload pay will be the number of overload workload units times the highest Part time faculty per-credit pay rate.

- **4.1 Overload Limit** The maximum overload any GBC faculty member may have in any semester is 9 workload units (WU). All overload for any semester must be approved in advance by the VPASA. In determining the maximum overload for one semester, certain types of overload may be excluded in determining if a faculty member has met the maximum overload of 9 WU. These exclusions include the following:
 - 1. Exclude up to 3 WU of non-instructional, reassigned duties.
 - 2. Exclude any classes which are not taught 100% within the published regular 15 week semester.
 - 3. If online classes are being taught and workload is received for classes with enrollment of any course split into more than one section, up to 6 WU may be excluded from the maximum allowed for overload.
 - 4. Do not include the .25 WU/credit adjustment for certain online classes of large size (workload policy, Chapter 5, Section 3).
 - 5. Exclude independent study WU.
 - 6. Any WU above 9 after the above listed considerations must have the approval of the faculty member's supervisor in advance.

5.0 Underload

Any faculty carrying less than the stated number of workload units for their position in any given semester will have duties assigned to them by the VPASA from the following options:

- 1. Be given a larger credit load the next semester (may be carried over only from fall to spring semesters; may not be carried over to the next academic year).
- 2. Be given a course previously scheduled to be taught by a Part-time instructor.
- 3. Schedule a course or courses to be offered in the late semester schedule.
- 4. Offer one or more short courses targeted for specific groups.
- 5. Be assigned duties by appropriate administrators that relate to the faculty member's function to the institution. These duties should be equal in time and effort to that of the number of workload units the faculty member is short.

6.0 Exceptions

Exceptions to the workload policy will only be allowed if exceptional circumstances force deviations from this policy. All exceptions to the normal implementation of the workload policy as set forth above must be approved by the VPASA. Exceptions will be granted only on a semester-by-semester basis and generally only for one semester.

7.0 Faculty Incentive Stipends

All activities listed below must be approved in advance by the VPASA. Performance of these activities and functions must have a demonstrable benefit to GBC. These are not to be counted as part of a faculty core workload or overload unless agreed to in advance by the VPASA.

- 1. Leadership Positions in Professional and College Associations. The faculty members may receive a stipend for taking on a leadership position in a professional or college association. These must be elected offices within widely recognized organizations, and have titles such as President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, or Program Director. Not more than one leadership position will be recognized for any single academic year. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be clearly reflected in the performance of related duties. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASA in consultation with the involved faculty.
- 2. **Principal Investigator (or the equivalent) for a Grant Proposal.** Unless an instructor is paid through the grant, a faculty member may receive a stipend for participating in writing a grant and performing functions required of a grant. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be reflected in all phases of the grant and related activities. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASA in consultation with the involved faculty.
- 3. **Authorship of Professional Articles**. Having a peer-reviewed professional article published regionally, nationally, or internationally may result in the faculty member receiving a stipend. The faculty's affiliation with GBC must be clearly reflected in the publication together with the faculty's name. The impending publication of professional articles must be reported to the VPASA prior to publication. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of publication.
- 4. **Authorship of Book or Monograph.** If a faculty has a book or monograph published after the manuscript's acceptance by a standard commercial or academic publishing company, a stipend may be awarded to the faculty only if the publication is not to generate royalties for the author. This is providing that GBC's name appears in the publication in association with the author's name. The impending publication of books must be reported to the VPASA prior to publication. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1500 may be paid as determined by the VPASA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of publication.
- 5. **Shows, Performances, and Competitive Exhibitions**. A stipend may be awarded for planning, preparing, and executing a show, performance, or exhibition if these are not associated with classes being taught or other normal duties associated with the faculty job. This stipend will be considered only if the faculty member is receiving no other compensation for the activity. These activities must be approved in advance by the VPASA, followed by clear documentation of completion. The show, performance, or exhibition must be discussed with and approved by the VPASA before the beginning of the semester of its occurrence. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1000 may be paid as determined by the VPASA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of completion.
- 6. **Hosting a Seminar or Conference.** These activities may bring a stipend payment to faculty if the seminars or conferences are deemed as positively affecting the standing and image of the College. The anticipated work hours involved in planning, preparing, and executing the seminar or conference will be documented and delivered to the VPASA in advance for approval. GBC's name must appear prominently in all aspects of the seminar or conference. Depending on the time and responsibility involved, a stipend of up to \$1500 may be paid as determined by the VPASA in consultation with the involved faculty, paid upon proof of completion.

Other

Other activities having a clear benefit to the college, but not specifically listed above, may be considered for stipends on a case-by-case basis. Performance of these activities and functions must have a demonstrable benefit to GBC. These will not be counted as part of a faculty core workload or overload unless agreed to in advance by the VPASA. All "Other" activities must be approved in advance by the VPASA.

President's Council Approved: April 26, 2005, April 28, 2009, May 8, 2012, February 25, 2014, and June 14, 2016 Approved by Faculty Senate: May 13, 2016

Contact the assistant to the president for any questions, corrections, or additions.

APPENDIX Clarification of New Course Development Guidelines and Workload August 7, 2007

The following clarifications and guidelines are for implementation beginning with the fall semester, 2007. These are principally restatements and clarifications of what already exists in the current workload policy.

- 1. New course development for any course or conversion of a previously developed course to the online or other format will be recognized in an individual's workload only with <u>prior</u> approval of the VPASA.
- 2. There is no provision to receive workload compensation for redevelopment for a course that has previously been developed or delivered, except for those classes approved to be converted to a distance format (there is no workload consideration for "revamping" courses). It is assumed that all instructors are continually updating the content and delivery of their courses on a routine basis as part of the assessment process.
- 3. Beginning in the fall of 2007, any new course that is developed will only be approved in workload consideration for one development, whether it be for live, online, or any other delivery. Courses should initially be developed with the intent that in the future they may be delivered either online or live, or in some combination of delivery methods. Non-online courses that existed before the fall of 2007 and are considered for conversion to the online format will be given workload consideration for redevelopment with prior approval of the VPASA.
- 4. Beginning in the fall of 2007, workload considerations for the development of new INT Seminars (INT 339, 349, 359, 369) will be approved for only one class for each of the four seminars each academic year. All other sections that are offered should be previously developed seminars, or must be developed without additional workload consideration. This is in consideration that many excellent seminars covering many topical areas have already been developed, and that any of these topics could be considered for presentation more than once. The decision of which single class during a year may receive workload development consideration will come from the respective department administering the particular seminar.
- 5. There are no workload considerations for the development of "Special Topics" types of classes.

Curriculum	Review Committee						
Senate Re	port						
5/21/2021	r.						
Note: The foll approval.	owing was reviewed by the Curric	culum Committe	e, and sub	omitted to t	he appropi	riate dean	for
Curriculum							
Review							
Committee			Change			Change	
Meeting		New	in	Inactivate	New	in	Inactivate
Date	Description	Course	Course	Course	Program	Program	Program
4-15-2021	HMS AAS Program					X	
4-29-2021	AS in Radiologic Science					Х	
4-29-2021	RAD 124		Х				
4-29-2021	RAD 225		X				
4-29-2021	RAD 243		Х				
5-13-2021	ECE 210	Х					
5-13-2021	ECE 235	Х					
5-13-2021	ECE 441	Х					
5-13-2021	EDES 300	Х					
				T			

The chair of the Curriculum Review committee would like to thank the members of the committee who have served tirelessly over the past two years. The committee has made some important changes and

will likely continue in a state change in going forward.

General Education Committee Report 14 May 2021

In April the General Education Committee approved this form for submissions to the general education committee for review. The goal is to make is simpler for the committee to review and the ensure submissions meet the necessary standards of GBC. The new form will be uploaded on the General Education Committee webpage in the fall.



General Education Course Submittal Form

This form is for evaluation of proposed lower-division general education courses.

- * Submissions should be made by full-time faculty only.
- * General education courses must be reviewed by department faculty prior to submission.
- * Incomplete general education components (i.e., course learner objectives, general education learner objectives and assessments) will be returned to submitter for completion.
- * Forms for courses approved by this committee are forwarded to the Curriculum Review Committee.

The name and photo associated with your Google account will be recorded when you upload files and submit this form.

Not brian.zeiszler@gbcnv.edu? Switch account

* Required

Submitter name, department, and division *
Your answer
GBC email and contact phone number. *
Your answer
Course under consideration for general education is: *
a new GBC course to be added to the General Education offerings.
a 'regular' existing course to be added to the General Education offerings.
Upload Course Syllabus *

Course Number and Catalog Description NOTE: the catalog description should match the GBC catalog for an existing course. *
Your answer
Briefly explain why this course should be in general education: *
Your answer
Primary General Education Category (choose just one) *
Communication and Expressions
Logical and Scientific Reasoning
Human Societies and Experience
Technological Proficiency

Your answer
List at least three course objectives, corresponding general education objectives (listed under the secondary categories), and corresponding assessment tools. NOTE: General education objectives need to be identical to those in the catalog.
Your answer
Tour anower
Briefly describe how course content addresses each objective. *
Your answer

Briefly, explain the syllabus review process carried out in your department. *
Your answer
General Education Committee explanation for "no" or "revisions required"
Your answer
Submitter (type name and date). *
Your answer
Department Chair Approval (type name and date). Required for GEC review. *
Your answer

General Education Committee Approval
Yes (forwarded to appropriate dean)
No (explanation below, returned to submitter)
Revisions required (returned to faculty for resubmission, explanation below)
Approved form forwarded to appropriate Dean:
Choose
Submit
Never submit passwords through Google Forms.
This form was created inside of Great Basin College. Report Abuse
Google Farmer